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DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Board of Direclors of LIBL Fund Managers Limited is pleased to present the annual report of “UBL
Retirement Savings Fund™ (URSF) for the year ended June 30, 2023,

Economic Outlook

Economic policy decislons played a significant role n the urgent need 1o fulfil the IMF prereguisites,
while polllical delays were exacerbaled by lhe upcoming elechions. The govemment eventually
complied with the IMF's demands after the SBP's FX reserves reached coritically low levels. Pakistan's
recent efforts o mest IMF requirements by implementing changes o the FYZ4 Budgel, liting import
restrichions, letiing PKR/USD fioat freely and raising policy rate finally bore fruit as the country has
clinched a stall-level agreement for a new 9-manth SBA faciiity of approximately USD 3,0bn.

The Execulive Board of the IMF has granied its approval for 2 S-month SBA for Pakislan. This
agreement will enable Pakistan to obfain approximately USD 3.0 billicn, which is equivalent to 111% of
its quota The inifial disbursement, amounts 1o USD 1.2 bilion, and subsequent disbursements will be
made afler 2 quarlerly reviews. This approval was widely anticipated given the recent developments
The future disbursement of Iranches is heavily refiant on meeling ceraln requirements, Il s crucis] for
the carelaker govermment and the incoming govermment, lo make confinuous progress on thess
prerequisites over the next nine months. The path ahead will be challenging, particularly as the IMF
projects a higher fiscal deficit in FY24. Any delays in implementing reforms will not only hinder the
remaining USD 1.8 billion from he IMF but also aifect the potenlial supporl from olher exiemal lenders,
which k= vital for Pakistan's curren| resarve levels

June's headiine inflation siood al 28.4% year-on-year (Yo'), showing a significant decreaze compared
o the unprecederded 38.0% Yo recorded in the previous month, This brought the average mflafion
for the fiscal year 2023 o 29.0% YoY. The decline in infialion was driven by mulliple factors, including
the base effact and a 0.3% month-on-month (MoM) decieasa |n infiation. The reduction in inflation was
primarily influenced by lower retail fuel rales and decreased food prices. Despile fhe recent budgel
announcement of some measures that could polentially boost revenue bul also have infiaficnany
consequences, we anlicipale a gradual decrease in inflation over the next 12 months. This expectation
is based on faclors such as (he high base effect, lower commaedity prices, improved supply situation in
the local markel, a stable PKR, and weak domeslic demarnd

In an emesgency session of the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC), the State Bank of Pakistan (SBF)
apted o raise the policy rate by an extra 100 basis points, bringing it 1o 22.0%. The MPC's official
stslement pointed oul two crucial developments thal have adversely affecled the Infialion oullook
Firsily, there has bean an upward adjusiment in faxes, duties, and PDL following the approval of the
FY24 budget Secondly, the removal of impori resirictions s expected to pul & strain on foreign
exchange resenves

According o the recenlly publishad balance of payment data by the Slate Bank of Pakistan (SBP), June
recorded a fourth conseculive monthly suplus in the current account, Iotaling USD 334 milion. This
posiiive development can be primanly afiributed o reduced imports, which can be atiributed fo the
ongoing economic siowdown and the implementation of import reslriciions aimed at supporiing foreign
exchange reserves. Consaguently, the current account deficil (CAD) lor FY23 significanily decreased
from USD 17.5 billion to jusi USD 2.6 billion compared o the previous year. We anlicipate healthy
inflows from sources siuch as lhe Inlemalional Monalary Fund (IMF), Saudi Arabia, United Asah
Emirates (LJAE), and multilateral loans. As a result, mmmmmmdmsmm
expected lo experience significant growth from their cument levels.
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In June 2023, the current govemmant introduced jts sesond consesulive budigat, presenting a
significant expenditure plan of PKR 14.5 trillion, There are substantisl challenges associaled with
servicing high levels of debt and Implermenting measures to counter inflation, which pose gignificant
obstacles. Nonetheless, conicems arjse regarding the feasibility of fully disbursing the development
expenditure dug to the existing tight fiscal position. Despite the inclusion of ambitious targats, such as
& remarkable 28% year-on-yaar growth in fax collection and 83% year-on-year Incteasa in non-tax
revenues, the projected fiscal deficit for FY24 is eslimated to be PKR 6.9 trillion. equivalent t 8.5% of
the GOP. However, we anticipate that lower-than-anticipated revenue due to a prolonged economic
slowdown and elevated expendilure will resull in 2 fiscal deficlt exceading 7.5% of GDP.

Dabt Market Review
On ageount of rising Inflation and depleting FX ressrves, SBP raised the policy rate by 825 bps
cumulatively te 22% during FY23
PKRV as at | PKRV as a
Tenors 30th June 3#31 .JI:JT':II't ?mr
2023 2022
3 Maonihs 2285 14.98 7.67
8 Manths 22 87 15,15 71.72
1 Year 2293 1563 763
3 year 1947 13.45 6.02
5 Years 18.08 12.83 315
10 Years 15.32 12.62 24

Markal appetite for treasury bille remained stroeng during FY23. Heawy participation amounting o PER
~41.8 (rilllan was obsarved, oul of which the govemnment accepted ~PKR 24 8 trillion. Dus to monatary
tightening, a clear prafarance was ohserved in the IM T-Bills. During FY23, the markel participated
PKR ~30.6 trilion in 3M T-Bills which constitutad 73% of the totsl participation followed by 12M T-Bills
and M T-Sills with the pariicipation of PKR ~6.2 trlllen (15% of the total participation) and PKR 4.9
trillion (12% of the total participation) respectivaly.

Ih fixed rate PIE auctions, Ihe markel participated PKR 4.1 trllion, the government made close 1o target
acceplance In fiked rate PIBs. Tolal accepled amount was ~FKR 1,001 trillien, Despite the heavy
participation, the market demanted refatively higher yields. The governmenl proactively managed the
cost of borrowing and the maturity proflle simullansously. However, since the significant monetary
tightening, government refuctant to accept bids at higher fevels. In last quaner, only 3Y PIB bids ware
accepled,

For flester rale PlBs, the rising Intersst rale scanzrio made Investment mare favorable, A significsnt
participation was chserved in floater rate PIBs, a participation of BKR 8.2 trillion took place in the floater
rete PiB auctions. out of which the governmeant accepted PKR 5.3 trillion. Out of PKR 5.3 frillion, PKR
2 3 trillon accepted In the 2Y ficater PIB, PKR 1.35 trlilon was accepted In tha 3Y floater PIB, PKR
1.548 trlilian was accepted in 5Y floater PIB and 101 bilion was accepted In 10Y floater PIB.

On the [slamic front, the markst remained skewesd (owards variable rate |jara sukuk. Total participation
wes ~PKR 1298 tillion in the variable rate |jara sukuk auction out of which the government accapted
~PKR 736 billion against the total tsrget of PKR 1208 billlon. Howsver, PKR 231 billlon participation

was wilnessed in the fixed rate ljara sukuk and Ihe govemnment accepted ~PKR 135 billon against the
{otal langal of PER 415 billlan

——————— e ———————e———
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Commadity Outiook

Global economic growth Is ikely to moderate in the secand half of 2023, while inflation looks s8l to csel
off. However, _Inl_latr_un Is not likely to reach levels that central banks find comfortable, on its own, If
inflation remains high, it will keep putting pressure on central banks, possibly leading to further
tlghte_mn_g of monetary policies. So far, tha negalive effects of monetary tightening have besn offset by
diminishing supply shocks caused by the COVID-19 pahdemic and Russia’s jnvasion of Ukraine,
Canfimied tightening measures are [ikely to have a detrimantal impact on the privats sactor. Following
OPFEC+'s decision on June 4 to extend crude ofl production cuts until 2024, a gradual decline in glohal
oll siockpiles over the next five quarters is expected which would likely keep arude oil prices elevated.

The prices of goid and siiver are expected lo remain supported Base metals prices are currently

stabllizing but could gain more stability in dermand in the upcoming manths. which may shift stisntion
lowards low invantarnies

Stock Market Review

Despite the KSE100 index closing the year at a Nattish -0.2% in FY23, It concluded on a positive note
in tarms of the pountry's overall macro direction. The Stand-By Arrangement (SBA) has provided the
government with the necessary leewsy to camy out the upcoming electoral process, which is scheduled
within the next four months (Cctober 2023), This would also pave the way for unlocking disbursements
fram othet Intemational lendars. Market santiment has bean heavlly Influenced by the IMF's sppraval,
as this new arrangement Is anticipsted lo boost investor confidence. However, the sustained marksl
rally and the realization of valuations will depend on the successful implemeantation of reforms onge
again highlighted by the IMF. These reforms encompass the energy sector, inflation control, and fiscal
discipline. At present, the KSE100 Index offers historic low multiples, supgesting significant potential for
a rebound.

Future Qutlook _

Looking ahead, we expect thal slections will be conducted as scheduled in Oclober, and during the
Imterirn perod, a caretaksr government will be responszible for upholding the SBA (Stand-By
Amangermant) facilty and meeting any prarequisites sat by the incoming government. The main fogus
= likely to b on preserving the recent advancsments made in macroeconomic stability by avoiding
excessive fiscal spending in the run-up 1o the elections, committing to @ market-driven exchange rate,
ant malntaining responsible monetary pelicies. Cansidering the stalf-level agreement, we andicipate
ihat Pakistani 2quities will cantinuz their current upward rajectory.

D OP —UBL RE T SAVINGS FUN

Tha Fund comprises of four sub funds namaly Equity sub-fund, Debt sub-fund, Money Market sub-fund
and Commuadity sub-fund. The Fund as a whole eamed a gross income of PKR 557.310 million and net
lgss of 627 million during the year, The total fund size stood at PKR 4507.046 milion as at the year
entl,

Performance raview for each sub fund Is given below:
a) Equity Sub-Fund
For lhe year ahded Juns 30, 2023, the equity-sub-fund incurred a nat logs of PKR 6,27 million The net

pasets of equity sut-fund stood al PIKR 731.048 milllan represanting nal assst valus of PKR 7365510
per unit asat June 30, 2023,

HHAF= FRpuitund Magort = Furehy Yooy Epdad June 30, 2023 Pape 3




b} Dabt Sub Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the debt sub-fund eamed a gross income of PKR 160,808 rillian
and net income of PKR 145649 million, The net assats of debt sub-fund stood at PKR 1,035.55 million
represanting net assel value of PKR 354.8857 pef unit a8 2t June 30, 2023,

¢} Money Market Sub Fund

For the year anded June 30, 2023, the money market sub-fund eamed a gross income of PKR 344,652
milion and nel income of PKR 317.086 million. The net assets of money market sub-fund siood at PKR
2,732 862 million repressanting nal assal value of PKR 282 6542 per unit as a June 30, 2023

d} Commodity Sub Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the Commodity sub-fund eamed a gross income of PKR 1.282
million and nat lass of PKR (.85 milion. The net assels of commodity sub-fund stsod af PKR 7.585
milian reprasenting rist asset value of PKR 181.2200 per unit a8 at June 30, 2023,

AUDITORS

The present stslulory auditors M/s BDO Ebrahim & Co., Chartered Accountants being eligible, have
offered thamselves for reappoinimant The Audit Committes has recommended their appointment as
the statutory auditors of the Fund for the year 2024

CKN N

Ve would lie to thank our valued unit holders for their tonfidence and tust In UBL Fund Managetrs
Limited. In' addition, we would like to acknowledge the Secwrities snd Exchange Commissien of
Pakistan, State Bank of Pakistan and Central Depository Gompany of Pakistan Limited (Trustee) for
their continued support, guidance and coaperation. The Board would alsa like to lake this opporunity
to express iis appreciation 1o the smploveas for thelr dadication. commitmant, enthuslazm and hard

wirk,

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF UBL FUND MANAGERS LIMITED

r ™
\ 4\ |
N_ |
oL\,
Yasir Qadri
Chief Executive Officer

Karachl
Ciated: August 03, 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS
Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinian

We lipve aud'f’ged the_ﬂnancfn@__na_tmmu of UBL Retirement Savings Fund (“the Fund”), which comprise
the statement of asséts and liabilitles as 3t June 30, 2023, and the Income statement, the statement of
compreliensive incoma, the statement of cash flows and the statement af movement in unit holders® fund

for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of sienificant
accounting pelicies.

In aur apinlon, the accompanying financial statemeants present fairly, i all material respects, the financial
pasition of tie Fund asat June 30, 2023, and ite finznclal performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended [n accordance with accounting and reportirig standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basls for opinion

We conducted ouwr audit in accordance with International Stangards on Auditing (15As) a5 applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
Tar the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Fond in
eccordance with the Intermatjonal Ethics Standards Goard for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants a3 adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code), and we have
fulfilled our ather ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We belleve that the audit evidence
we liave oblatned & sufflicient and appropriste th provids a biasis for our gpinlon.

Information other than the financial statements and auditor's report therean

The Management Company of the Fund (“UBL Fund Managemant Limited") is responsible for the other
[r'fermation. The other infarmation comprises'the infermation meluded in theannual repart bl does not
include the financial statementsand our auditor’s report therean. Our opinion on the financial statements
toes not cover the ather information and we donot express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. |h
connection with our audit of the financlal statements, our responsibility Is to read the other nformation
and, in doing so, consider whether the ather infarmation 15 materially fnvonsistem with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audlt, or dtherwise appears to be materially missated. If,
based on' the work wie have petfdrmed, we conclude thal there s a3 material misstatement of LHis other
information; we are reqlired to repoit that fact. We have nothing to report i this regard.

Responsibilities of the Management Company and its Board of Directors

The Managemant Company ("UBL Fuhd Managers Limited") af the Find s responsible for the preparation
and fair presentation of the Hnancial statemortc in accordance with the reguirements of the Trost Deed,
the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (NBFC Rules), the Non-
Banking Finance Companies and Natified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Resulations) and accounting
and reporting standards as applicable in Paklstan and for such internal contrel as the Management
Camipany determifes i necessry 1o enables the prepamtion of financial staterments that are (ree from
malerinl misstatement, whether duie (o fradd of vrror.
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In preparing the financial statements, the Management Company is responsible for assessing the Fund’s
ability 1o continue as a golng concern, disclosing, as applicabile, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Management Company either intends to liguidate
the Fund or to cease dperations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so,

The Board of Directors of the Marmgement Company s responsible for overseeing the Fund's finsncial
reporting process,

Auditor's rexponsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

(Qur obyjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance dbout whether the Tinancial stsEt=ments as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether dye to fraud or error, and (o jssue an suditer™s report that
neludes our opiniom.

Reasonable assurance |s a high level of assurance, but Is not a guarantes that an audit conductad In
agcordance with 1545 as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatemnents can arise from fraud or error nnd are considered material if, individuaily or In the
aegregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis af these financial statements,

As part of an audit In accordance with 15As as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and mantan professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also;

LV
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud of error, design and perform audit procedures responsive Lo those rigks, and obtain audit
evidenta that it sufficient and appropriate to provide 3 basis for our gpinion. The risk of not detecting
o material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resylting from error, as fraud may
1nvnlv£ collusion, forgery, Intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of Internal
cuntrol,

Obitaid an Undarstanding of intamal control relevant to the abdit i drder 1o design sudit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Management Company’'s jntermal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the ressonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management Company.

Conclude en the appropriateness of the Mansgement Company’s uss of e going concern liasis of
accagnting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether amaterial oncertainty sxists related
o events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we canclude that a material uncertainty exlsts, we are required Lo draw attention in aur
auditar's report to the related disclosures i3 the financial statements or, If such disclosures are
inadetjuate, to modify our opition, Our cidelusiots are baced an the audit evidencs obtaingd up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, fulure events or conditions may cause the Fund Lo cease
ke cantinue as a going concern,

Evaluate the averall presentation, structure and content of the financlal statements, ncluding the
disclopures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in & manner that achieves falr presentation,

dim B Lo, Chankerald Ao aintants
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We cammunjcate with the Hoard ol Directors of the Management Company regarding, among other
Imatters, the planned scope and timing of the gudit and significant audit finditgs, Including any significant
deficiencies ininternal contrgl that wie identify during our agdit

We alss provide the Board of Directars af the Management Company with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicabte, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors of the Management Company, we determine
thase matters that were of moat significancs in the zudit of the financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audlt matters. We dsseribe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
rogiiation pracludes public disciosure about the makter of when, Inextremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report becauss the adverse consequences of
daing so would reasonably be experted to cutweieh the public Interest benetits of such communication,

Repart on other legal and regulatory requirements

Batod e alr audit, we Turthar report that moour apinion the financial statements have been prepared in
aEcordance with thE retevant provisions of the Trust Deed, NBFC Rules and NBFC Regulations.

Other Matter

The annual finhncial statements for the year ended June 30, 2021 were audited by another firm of

Chartersd Accountants, whose audit report dated September 28, 2022, expressed an unmadified up!ntun
respectively, on the aforementioned financial statemenis,

The engadement parther on the audit resulting in this independent auitor’s report is Tulfikar All Canser,

KARACHI

BDO EBRAHIM & CO.
paTED: 25 AUG HZ3 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

UDHN: AR202310067pN9 1uimO4

Page - 3
OO Fhrahim & Co, Chartered Accountants
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Fund Manager's Report — UBL Retirement Savings Fund (URSF)

i) Description of the Veluntary Pension Scheme (VPS) category and type -
Valuntary Pension Scheme / Open-end

i) Statement of VPS's investment objective
URSF is an open-and fund that aims to provide a sscure source of savings and regular
income after retirement to the Participants. The Participants would contribute to the Fund
during their working life and would typically withdraw from the Fund on or after retirement

iii} Explanation as to whether the VPS achieved its stated objective
The Pension Bcheme achieved its slated objeciive.

iv) Statement of benchmark(s) relevant to the VPS
Nene

V) Comparison of the VPS's performance during the period comparad with the said benchmarks

Wonthly Yield® M7F AupTF Sep?? il Nowil Dec?? Ro'lS B Ma'l AB My'E ™3 ATD

UHEF-ERF -150% 5 =Ny =5 D07 EIThe -£ S7% NSy =0 Ty I Sy L3% o ey D i a7=y
URSF-DsF 13 1235 1500h oiFn- AOBIN IEZE%  ISESR 1585 1SSiN  IRNIN  FESER  IidTnc  15AEN
RSN P& 1ZE% 185/ 3w J1EFS O ISA1%n MSHR 141 CITESA (18N NN 187y IAETH
URE-CsE -1 2Dy -1 8%y 1 T 05T i = 3TN =3 55% EFEN 1T ] =1 Sy T3 s

UBL Retirement Savings Fund FY'23

High Volatity 3.8%

Medium volatility Bdog

Law volatility 12.2%

| ower volalility 16.2%

vi) Description of the strategies and policies employed during the period under review in relation to
the VPS's performance

The Equity Sub Fund generated a retum of -9.65% dunng FYZ22 Maor exposure was taken in
Commercial Banks {229%), Oil & Gas Exploration (22%) and Ferbilizer (3%).

The Debt Sub Fund mantained majonty exposure in government securies dunng the year, keeping the
retumn consistent by gensrating a yield of 8 7% pa

The Money Market Sub Fund maintained majorty exposure in government securties dunng the year,
keeping the refum consistent by generating a yield of 683% pa

The Commodity Sub Fund generated a retum of 5.35% during the year, which was primanily due fo the
upward nsing trend in intemationat gold prices duning the FY22.

FMR —LURSF i



vii) Disclosure of the VPS's asset allocation as at the date of the report and particulars of significant
changes in asset allocation since the last report (if applicable)

Correction

Asset Allocstion [% of Total Assets) Jun-23  Jun-22
T-Bills T 0%
Placements with banks 0% 0%
Term Finance Certificates/ Sukuks 1136 B3
PIB - Floater 36% 0%
Cash A48 B&%
Others 2% a%
Leverage il NIl
URSF Money Market [%: of Tolal Assets) Jun-23 | Jun-22
T-Bills S6% 0%
Placements with banks 03 0%
PIE - Floater 1554 0%
Cash 27% O73
Others 1% 3%
Leverage Mil il
URSF Equity [% of Total Assels) Jun-23 = Jun-22
Equities 50% 52%
Cash 7% A%

Othars 3% 2%
Spread Transaction 0% 0%
Leverage NIl NIl
Gold 66% 81%
T-Bllls 0% 0%

“Cash 642 95%
Others® -30%: 75%
Laverage il il

vili)  Analysis of the VPS performance
LRSF-ESF: FY'23 Retum;
URSF-DSF: FY'23 Return!
LRSF-MMSF: FY' 23 Return:
URSF-CSF: #Y'23 Return:

FMR —LURSF

0.74%
15.84%
16.67%
17:87%



ix) Changes in total NAV and NAV per unit since the last review period or since commencement (in

case of newly established VPS)
Net Asset Value NAV per unit
30-lun-23 | 30-Jun-22 Change 30-Jun-23 | 30-Jun-22 Change
Rupees (000) - Rupees ]
URSF-ESF 731,045 1,403,114 {47.90) 736.535310 731.1177 271.75%
URSF-DSF 1,035,549 1,077,121 (2.BB) 354 BO57 306.3681 5781.47%
URSFE-MMSE | 2,732,862 1,467,571 8.2 2825547 242 7754 B083.27%
URSF-CSF 7,585 41,021 (81.51) 181.2200 160.5500 4659.15%

x) Disclosure on the markets that the VPS has invested in including
- review of the market(s) invested in and retums during the period

Please refer to relevant section in direcior report

xi) Description and explanation of any significant changes in the state of affzirs of the VPS during
the period and up till the date of the manager's report. not otherwiae disclosed in the financial
statements
There were no significant changes in the siate of affairs dunng the year under review

xii) Breakdown of unit holdings by size
NuiaBe ol Number of Numberof | Number
Rangs of Units R Investora Investors . :EI;U i
ESF DSF MMSF CSF
0.0001 §,899 0999 1,306 1,798 1234 g4
100000000 - 495909990 19 46 120 0
50.000.0000 - 99,949 9599 2 7 24 0
100,000.0000 - 489,999 Go99 ' 4 2 0
500.000.0000 & Above 0 0 0 0
Total 1,328 1,855 1,400 164
xiii)  Disclosure on unit split (if any), comprising:-
Thers were no urit splifs during the penod
FMR = URSF 3




xiv)  Disclosurs of circumstances that materially affect any interests of unit holders
Investvient are subject to credit and market nsk.

xv) Disclosure if the Asset Management Company or its delegate, if any, receives any soft
commission (i.e. goods and sarvices) from its broker{s) or dealer(s) by virtue of transactions
conducted by the VPS,

Ne soft commissions are received by the AMC from its brokers or dealers by virtue of transactions
conducted by the Penson Scheme

FMR —LURSF



CENTRAL DEPOSITORY COMPANY
OF PAKISTAN LIMITED

Head Office:

CBC House, 99-8, Block ‘B
2M.C.H.5., Main Shahra-e=Faisal
Karachi - 74400, Pakistan.

Tel: {92-2%] 111-111-500
Fast:{92-21) 34326021 -23

URL: wwwerdepakistan.rom

Emall: info@cdepakcom

— 1@

TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE PARTICIPANTS
UBL RETIREMENT SAVINGS FUND

Report of the Trustee pursuant to Regulation 67D of the Non-Banking Finance Companies
and Netified Entities Regulations, 2008

We, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of UBL Retirement
Savings Fund (the Fund) are of the opmion that UBL Fund Managers Limited being the Pension
Fund Manager-has-in-all-malerial-respects-managed-the-Fund -during- the year ended June 30,
2023 in accordance with the provisions of the constitutive documents af the Fund, the Voluntary
Pension System Rules, 2005 and the NMon-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities
Regulations, 2008.

Further: in-our opinion; the management fee, feo puyable w Commission and other expenses paid
from the Fund during the period are in accordance with the applicable regulatory framework.

Bu{!};xin Akb cL

Chiel Execulive Officer
Cential Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

Karachi, September 28, 2023




UBL RETIREMENT SAVINGS FUND
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AS AT JUNE 30, 2023

ASSETS
Bank balances
Investments - Net
Receivable agamst sale of investmeants
Bividend and profit recervable
Deposits and other recervables
Advance income tax

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Payable to UBL Funds Manacer [imited - Pension Fund Manager
Pavable to Central Deposstory Company of Pakistan Tamated - Trustee
Payable to the Sacurmies and Exchange Comussion of Pakistan
Payahle agamst purchase of investments
Accrued sxpenses and other hiabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

PARTICIPANTS' SUB-FUNDS
{as per statement attached)

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

NUMEBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE

NET ASSET VALUE PER UNIT

Jume 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
Equity Debt ;‘a[nn;]-r ]\fiarket Commodity Total Equity Debt Mun;}' I\f]arket Commodity Total
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund e Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund e Sub-Fund
Note {Rupees m "00(0)
3 30,760 328,668 748,908 5.337 1,333 673 90,211 083,018 1446952 39974 2.560,135
f 685373 630 816 1,973,846 - 3210033 1.316.190 92,117 - - 1 408 307
18,783 - - - 18,783 8.955 - - - 8933
7 206 25273 17,794 118 44,003 1,333 10429 23,273 17 35052
& 3811 615 8,133 2991 13572 14315 2,108 6.033 2,803 25461
9 1.767 2.106 3.176 30 7.099 1.223 1.5342 2,964 3 5.802
761399 1.207 480G 2.751,.879 8496 4.729.254 1432 477 1.080.214 1479254 42 837 4 043 752
10 8475 432] 11313 71 24,5379 6.020 2.592 3,526 128 12.266
11 101 110 275 1 487 663 13 150 - 234
12 460 400 798 7 1.665 391 354 437 8 1.3%0
2012 161,668 - - 163 680 6.663 - - - 6.663
13 18,303 3.431 6.431 §32 31997 13.374 9.133 7.369 1.674 33.730
30351 171.930 19,017 011 222 208 29,313 12,094 11.682 1814 34,903
731,049 1.035.550 2732862 7,383 4507 046 1403114 1LO77.120 1467572 41,023 3088829
731.049 1,033,530 2,732 862 7.383 4,507 046 1403114 1,077,120 1467572 41,023 3 988,829
14
Units Units
i3 992 531 2917899 9.668.572 41,833 1.919.156 3315776 6.037.433 255,500
Rupees Rupees
7365510 354 8057 282 6542 181 2200 7311177 306.2681 242 2734 160 5500

The annexsd notes from 1 to 29 form an inteeral part of these financial statements.

sD

Yasir Qadri
Chlet Executive Diflcer

For UBL Fund Managers Limited
{(Pension Fund Manager)

sD

Umiair Ahmed
Chief Financlal Offlcer

SD

fmran Sarmaar

Director




TBL RETIREMENT SAVINGS FUND
INCOME STATEAMENT
FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 24,2023

June 30, 2023 June 30, 2622
Equity Debt ;I::;-Tt Commedity i Equity Debt ::::1':: Commodity = o
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund ) Sub-Fund Sub-Fund  Sub-Fund . Sub-Fund
Fund Fund
Naote {Rupees in '000)
INCOME
Finaneial mcome 17 11,287 173243 349238 2343 336,823 6382 95,189 125830 15300 231021
Eealired ioszonsale cfinvestments - net (44.786) (104243 (1.641) (224 (38:773) (66665 (3,838 ET03) (168) (74.395)
Diidend income 112114 - - - 112114 112158 - - - 112138
Unreatized {laz3) / gain on revaluation of ivestments elassified
as fmancial azsets "at fair valoe through poofit or loss' - nat (ZB.174) (2015) (1,938) (128) (33,136) (184 874) 1572 = (1.611) 184315
Chher mcome - 3 - 34 il 152 2 20 363
TOTAL INCOME G431 160908 344 p5T 1302 BIS5W (132534 L' R 12F37F 341 83,733
EXPENSES
Remuneration of UBL Furd Managerz Linnted
- Pension Fund Manazer 1061 27526 62565 10 146 140 = i 23019 13,408 16559 305 5R.3E81
Sindh Sale: Tax on remumeration of the Pension Frnd Manager 16:2 3741 214 131% 18 5852 E 643 o] 2153 40 7,501
Salline and tmarketing sxpense 103 14578 4 987 9,035 - 20504 1837 1.173 1509 - 4619
Allocated expenses 164 1145 828 - . 1877 1204 = = = 1,224
Remuneration of Central Bepository Company (1]
of Pakistan Timited - Triustee 11 1388 1,305 2400 12 5015 2:021 1201 1,472 25 - S
Anmual fe= o the Sscunties and Exchanee Commistion of Pakisian 2 460 00 o8 7 1,663 501 354 37 1,384
Auddtor’s remuneration 12 21% 224 214 201 g5 151 145 151 144 57
Bmkerepe expenae 6275 43 220 - 6.934 6529 101 173 e 7,107
Cuestody and settlement charges: Loot 3 11 - 1.e17 31 1889 - - 730
Legal and professional charses 35 33 b 4 219 7 47 17 37 188
Bank charzes and other expanies 28 41 1461 3 2,534 5 20 37 3 62
TOTAL EXPENSES 58,717 15,259 27,563 445 90 984 45073 18 483 22 547 570 BE6TH
Net operatme (loss) | income for the vear (6.266) 145.649 317,006 247 457 326 (178.067) Ti.574 24782 {233) (946)
Element of Income  (loss) and capital gsing  (lozses) mehuded 4.4
in prices of units tzzued lezs those in units redeemed -met - - - - 2 - - - - -
Beveris] of provision for Sindh Werkers' Welfars
Fusd (SWWE) 131 - - - - 24082 5502 4 335 1335 340954
Net (loza)  moome for the year before taxation (6.266) 145.649 317,006 247 457526 (133.073) 83.076 104 167 {L0D) 34 008
Taxation 9 = - x ’ - - . - _ -
Net{loza) moome for the vear after taxaion (6:266] 145.64% 317096 247 157 326 (153.073) 83.076 1G4 107 (1607 34 008
Earmings / (lazs) perunit 20
The annexed-notes Tom 1 to 28 form o integral part of theze fnancial statemenis
For UBL Fund Mansgers Limited
{Pension Fund Manager)
sD sD 5D
Yasir Gadri Umair Ahmed Imran Saraar

Chlef Executlve Officer Chief Financlal Officer Director



UBL RETIREMENT SAVINGE FUND

STATEMENT OF COMPREFHENSIVE INCOME
FORTHE YEAR FNDED JUNE 30, 2023

Net(lozs) | income Tor ths vear
Ciher comprebensiie income for the year:

Total comprehensive (loss}  mcome for the year

June:30, 2023

Theanrexed notes from 1 to 29 fonn an integral part of these financial statentests:

sD
Yasir Gadri
Chief Executlve Officer

June 30, 2022
Edqiiity Deb MOSEY oty Eauity Deb Money Conmisdity
quity 1 ikt ommaodity Total ity eht Aloney ommedity Total
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Fond Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Marker Fund Sub-Fund
({Rupees in "000)
(6.265) 143 640 317,608 B4T 457326  (153.073) B3.075 104 107 {100y 340068
(6.268) 1435 640 317,896 247 437326 (153075 23,078 104,107 £100) 34,008
For UBL Fund Managers Limited
{Pension Fund Manager)
sD <D
Umair Ahmed

Chlef Finane¢lal Offlcer

Imran Sarwar
Director



TUBL RETIREMENT SAVINGS FUND
STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT IN PARTICTPANTS' SUB-FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Met asseiz.at bepmnning of the year
Amount received on izssance of units

Beailocation emong Sob-Funds

Amount paid on redemotion of nnits

Element of {income) / lozzand capital (gains)
lozses welndad 1 price of unite zold

lez=those in untts redesmed - net

Net (loss)

gam.on sale of myvestments
Unrealized (loss) ( gain oo revalpstion of invesintents

ciazsified as'at feir vahie thronph profit or lozy’

Oiher net incame {loss) for the vear

Net assets at end of the vear

The annexed notes fFam 1 to 29 form an integral parf of these financisl'satentents.

sD

Yasir Gadri
Chiet Executlve Officer

Note

18

Umair Ahmed
Chief FInanclal Officer

Imran Sarwar
Director

June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
Equity Debt Alonev Comm odity Total Equity Debt Aloney Commadity Total
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund AlarketFund Sob-Fund Sub-Fund Eub-Fund Alarket Sub-Fund
({Rupees in "000)
1403114 LO77,120 1467.572 41,023 > URE EIC 1. 835.641 843 783 1135842 12 768 3,830 140
436,059 731,658 2191324 13481 3472533 341 527 352,231 ga6 281 38,540 1. 708888
81,359 (46928} (32.50%) (1.B4E] - 21340 (46.528) (32.585) (1,848) =
(L183.227) [(871.951) (L:310535) {43028) (3.411.641) {702,348} {356 819) (806, 163) {5,648) {1.673.978)
(663,703 (187,215 D48 104 (34.283] 60,822 (279452 [42 4806 227523 28355 124,912
(44.786) (104143 (2641 {824y (58.773) 260112 EL53T) (161 33 258,724
(28.174) (2.915) (1,938) (1285 (33.136) 189351 218 = E 169,570
85,604 1535933 321675 1,000 549 257 (582 531) £4 380 104768 (4G5 {384 256)
(6.2460) 145 640 317,096 87 457326 {153.07% £3.075 184107 {1D0) 34,008
73l 0do 1035530 2731862 TA8% +.307 047 1.403:114 L0178 1467572 41023 3 088 EI9
For UBL Fund Managers Limited
(Penszion Fund Manager)
sD 5D




UEL RETIEEMENT SAVINGS FUND
CASHFLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

CASHFLOWS FROA OPERATING ACTIVITIES Note

Wet {lozs) ¢ meome for the year before tasstion

Adjustments for:
Fmanctal mecome
Dividend income

Reatized loss on sale of investments - pet

Unrealized loss « (zain) eo revalustion of mvestments clazsified

a3 'at far vaiue thropgh profit or Joss'

Elentent of (meoma) / oz and capital (gams) / lossez includsd 46
in priess of units jesped less those in units redeemed - net

Bevereal of provizion for Sindh Workers' Welfar= Fund (SWWE)

fIncrease} / decrease in assets

Inveziments

Becerable azamst=zle of mvestments
Depositz and other recerrables

Increase | (decrease) in liabilities
Payable to TBL Fonds Manager T imeed - Pension Fond Manager
Payabls to Central Depeozifory Company of Pakstan Tumited — Trostee
Parahle to the S=curifies and Exchasive Commizsion of Palistan
Parable soamst purchaze of myvestments
Accrosd expenzes and other labalinies

Cash (used in) / generated from operations

Profin - mmterest tnoomie recenead

Dividetid income recemed
Advancetax paid

Net cash flows from / (wsed in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Ampount received o t2muance of vtz

Be-gllocation amonge finds

Amount pard on redemiphon of units
Net cask {used m) * flows from fnancne activities
Wet (decreaza) / incressz 1n cazh and cash egunivalents
Cash and ¢ash eguivalents at the begmamg of the year
Cazh and cash equivalents at the-end of the year

Caszh and cash squivalentz
Bank balances

The anmexzd notes from b 1o 29 form an mtepral part of these financial statements

sD

Yasir Qadri
Chlet Executlve Cfflcer

Jume 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
Equity Debt Money Markst Commodity Sub- Tatsl Eguity Debt Money Markst  Commodity Sub- Total
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Fund Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Fund Fund
(Rupees in "000)
(6,266 143 640 317,099 547 437326 [1%53.073) 33076 104107 (1) 34.008
(11287) (173.543) (349.238) (2345 (536,823) (6.3E1) (28180 (125 850) (1,500% 231.921)
(112,114) - = 2 (112.114) (112.158) - - - (112.158)
44786 10,424 261 24 58,775 ai_ 6a0 3,855 3,703 168 T4.306
28,174 2815 LS55 129 33,136 184,878 (1578 - - 183304
- - = = = (24 002 (5,507 (432%] (135) (34.054)
(36.717) {14:833) (17 263) [4=5] 159.680) (45,0623 (183315 £22.365) (1.367) (B7.325)
557,857 ¢572.038) (L378.42%) (1.053) {1.993 659) 71.401 389,662 (3,703} (168) 457102
(2.82%) - - - (2.53E) G363 - - - 6363
L0704 1493 (2,120) {188) 9,880 17 680 3468 (3,702} 50 18.007
352735 {FT0543) (L2830 543) (241 £LB95598) g5 444 393.131 (7. 405) 12 4813562
2455 1,72. TeE7 (2T 12113 3,082 1,000 1.711 T 3873
(364) 25 125 (%) (347) 483 (TH 3 1 433
{131} 48 361 {1} P 13 143 164 5 503
(4,651) 161,658 - - E7017 {22.440) (325.370) e = (347810
3020 {3.702) {1,138) (842% (1.353) 3382 3.971 1.837 541 2571
1.03% 1390836 335 {203) 167305 (13290 (328330 £ B e 7 (331150)
11143 139,097 R 244 337201 6228 Q4487 109,961 1,334 212:21)
112,803 - - - 112695 118,871 - : - 118,871
(544 (564) {1E2) 7} (1.287) (25) (774) (1,602 5 (2500
624,348 {287.131) (L635238) (35 £1.287374) 160,161 145183 224 1.071 381 682
436,052 731,658 1121324 15481 3372533 341 527 552131 Be5 281 38840 1,798 888
B1,36% [46.928) (32, 593) (1.848) = B1.368 (46,926) (323585 (1,548) -
(1,183:227) (271.051) {1,310, 555) (45028) (3411 641) (702.348) (35681 (606,163 (5.645]) (1673076
{865,790) (187219} 048,194 (34285 50,892 (272452) 148 485 235 5323 25.355 124912
(32.451) {434.350% (G2 044 (348375 f1,326487) (118291} 205,569 308,757 A5 316601
00211 983,013 L4456 932 A 2 500 155 209 502 §26,340 L137.135 18,548 2043534
30:760 323,668 T48.908 3337 1333673 20711 Q83 018 i 446,852 380974 2:560:153%
50,760 528 688 T45 908 5337 1333673 20211 933,018 1145652 3oy 2560155
50,760 528 658 T4E 908 %337 1335 673 o211 083 018 1 445952 380974 256015%

For UBL Fund Managers Limited

(Pension Fund Manager)

gD

Umair Ahmed

Chief Flnanclal Officer

Imran Sarwar
Director



UBL RETIREMENT SAVINGS FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 20, 2023

1.

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

UBL Retirement Savings Fund (the "Fund"), was established under the Trust Deed executad
between UBL Fund Managers Limited (the "Pension Fund Manager” - 4 whollvy owned
subsidiary company of United Bank Limated) as the Pension Fund Manager and the MCB
Finaneial Services Limited as the Trustee. The Trust Deed was executed on November 17,
2009, and the Fund was approved as a pension find by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) on January 29, 2010 in accordance with the requirements of
Veluntary Pension System Rules, 2005 (the VPS Rules). The Fund commenced 11s operations
from May 19 2010, The trustesship of the Fund was transferred to Central Depository
Company of Pakistan Limmed (CDC) effective from March 31, 2014 through a supplemesntal
trust deed dated February 21, 2014

The Pension Fund Manaser of the Fund s remistered wath the SECP a5 a2 Non-Banking
Finance Company under the NBEC Rules, 2003, The remstersd office of the Pension Fund
Manager is situated at 4th Floor, 3T5M Building, Beaumont Road, Crvil Lines, Karachi

The Fund 15 a penston fund and offers units for public subscniption o a continuous basis. The
units are non-transierable except in the circumstances mennioned n the VPS Rules and can be
redeemed by surrendenne to the Fund As per the offering document, the Fund cannot
distribute any income from the Fund whether 1n cash or otherwiss.

The Fund consists of four Sub-Funds namely, UBL Eetwrement Savings Fund Equity Sub-
Fund ("Equity Sub-Fund"), UBL Retirement Savings Fund Debt Sub-Fund ("Debt Sub-
Fund"). UBL Retirement Savings Fund Money Market Sub-Fund ("Money Market Sub-Fund")
and UBL Reurement Savings Fund Commodity Sub-Fund ("Commodity Sub-Fund")
(collectively the "Sub-Funds"), The mam featores of the imvestment policy for each of the Sub
Funds are as follows:

- The Equity Sub-Fund shall mvest primanly i listed equity secunties with a
primmmum mnvestment of 90% of 1te Net Assete Value (NAV) 10 listed shares The
investment in a single company is restricted to lowsr of 10% of NAV or the paid-up
capital of the wvestee company. The investment 1in @ singie stock exchange sector 15
restricted to the hisher of 30% of the NAV or the index weight, subject to a
maximum of 35% of the NAV. The remaiming assets of the Equity Sub-Fund shall be
invested in any government secusity having less than one year time to matunty. of m
a scheduled commercizl bank having credit rating of ar least A



The Dbt Sub-Fund shall invest pnmanly in tradable debt securties with weighted
average duration of the investment portfohio of the Debt Sub-Fund not excesding
five vears At least twenty five percent (23%) of the assets m the Debt Sub-Fund
shall be imvesied i secunities issusd by the Federal Government and up 1o twenty
five percent (23%) of the Funds may be deposited with banks having not less than
"AA +" rating. Composition of the remamning poriton of the investments shall be as
defined 1n the offering document.

The Meonev Market Sub-Fund shall invest in short term debt instruments with time to
matunty not exceeding six months, and in case of Shanah compliam Government
securitzes. up to three vears: The Fund can make mvestment i Shanah compliam
securities 1ssued by the Federal Government and the commercial banks having A+
raning. There ars no restnctions placed by the VPS Rules on such investments. The
Fund can also make mvestment in securifies 1ssued by the provincial sovemment,
city govermnment and government or a corporate entity (having cradit ranng of 'A’ or
higher) up to 10%c, 3% and 3% of net assets of the Money Market Sub-Fund,
respectively.

The Commoditvy Sub-Fund shall invest only in those commaodity futures contracts
that are waded at the Pakistan Mercantle Exchange and cash settled fitures
contracts, except for gold for which the Commeodity Sub-Fund, in addmion to the
cash settled futures. may also invest in deliverable futures contracts. At least seventy
percent {70%) of net assets of the Commeodity Sub-Fund shall remain mmvested in
commodity futures contracts duning the vear bassd on quarterly average mvestment
calculated on daily basis At least 10% of the net assets of the Commodity Sub-Fund
shall remamn mvested in Government treasury bills or Government sscurities having
less than 90 day=s" time to matuniv of kept as deposits with scheduled commercizl
banks which are rated not less than AA by a rating agency remstered with SECP_ A
Pension Fund Manager may mvest any surplus (on-mnvested) funds in Government
treasury bills and Government securities having less than one vear hme to maturity
or keep as deposits with scheduled commereial banks which are rated not less than
AA by z rating agency registered with SECD.

As prescribed under the VPS Rules, the Fund offers five types of allocation schemess 1o the
contributors of the Fund namely High Volatlity, Medium Volatility, Low Velanluy, Lower
Volanlity and Life Cycle Allocation. The contnbutors have the option to suggest a mimimum
percentage of allocation to the above allocanon schemes (subject to the muimimum percentages
prescribed in the offenng document). Based on the mimmum allocation, the Funds are
dllocated to the above stated Sub-Funds.
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The allocation to the Sub-Funds has to be done at the date of opening of conmbutor's pension
account and on an anniversary date thersafter, The conmbution amount may be paid by the
contributor on a penodic basis such as-annual semt annual guarterly or monthly basis. UBL
Retirement Savings Fund also offers optional insurance cover 1o the contmbutors.

VIS Credit Rating Company Limuted has reaffirmed manarement guality ranng of "AMI”

i TR Ny

(stable.outlook] to the Management Company as on December 302022

Title to the assets of the Fund 15 held in the name of the Central Depository Company af
Palastan Limiied as the Trustee of the Fund.

Pursuant to the epactment of the Sindh Trusts Act 2020 (as amended wide Sindh Trusts
(Amended) Act, 2021). the Trusts including Collective Investment Schemes, Private Funds,
etc., being Specialized Trusts are required to be registered with the Assistant Director of
Industries and Commerce (Trust Wing), Government of Sindh under Section 12 of the Simdh
Trusts Act. 2020 In this connzenon, the Management Company submimad restated Trust Dead
of the Fund which was duly remstered during the vear on August 13, 2021,

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards as apphcable m Pakistan The accounting and reporting standards
applicable in Pakistan compnise of

- [mtemanonal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) i1zsued by the Intemanonal
Accounnng Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

= Provisions of and directives issusd under the Companies Act, 2017 and

- Voluntary Penston System Rules, 2005 and requirements of the Trust Dead.

Where provisions of and diréctives 1ssued under the Companies Act, 2017, the Veoluntary
Pensson System Rales: 2003 and requirements of the Trust Deed differ fram the TFRS, the
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, the Voluntary Pension
System Rules, 2005 and requirements of the Trust Desd have been followad.

These financial statements have been prepared under the histonical cost convention, except
mvestments that are stated ar far values.

These financial statements have been prepared by followang accrual basis of accounting except
for cash flows information:
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Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupse, which 15 the fund's functional and
Presentation CUITency.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards, as
applicable 1n Pakistan  requirss management to maks judoments estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and the reported amounts of asssts, hahiliiies, income
and expenses.

The estimatss and associated assumptions are based on histonical sxpenence and varsous other
factors that are believed to be ressonable under the cwcumstances_ the resulie of which form
the basis of making the judements about the carrving values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results mav differ from these estimates.

The estimatss and underlying assumptions are reviswed on an engomnz basis. Revisions to
dccounting eshmates are recognised in the vear m which the estimate 1= revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the penod of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and futurs periods.

Judgments made by management i the application of approved accounting standards, as
applicable in Pakistan that have significant effect on the financial statements and estimates
with a significant risk of material judgment i the next vear are as follows:

Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial habilities
For details please refer notes 4.2 1.1 and 23 to these financial statements.

Impairment of financial assets
For dematls please refer notes 4.2.1.2 to these

Provision for taxation
For details please refer notes 4.4 and 19 to these financial statements.

Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund
For details please refer note 13.1 to these financial statements.

Other assets
Judgement 15 involyed in assessing the realisability of other ass=ts balances.
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APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDSMENTS AND
INTERPRETATIONS TO PUBLISHED APPROVED ACCOUNTING AND
REPORTING STANDARDS

New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for
the vear ended June 30, 2023

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the vear ended June
30, 2023 Thess standards. amendments and tmterpretations ‘are either not relevant to the
Fund's operations or are not expected to have sigmificant impact on the financial statements
other than cenain addinional disclosures.

Effective date
{annual periods
beginning on or after)

Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations' - Reférence to
the conceprual framework January 01 2022

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment’ -
Proceeds before intended use January 01, 2022

Amendments to [AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilimies and
Contingent ‘Assets' - Onerous Contracts - Cost of fulfilling a January 01, 2022

Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs.
New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are not vet effective

The following standards. amendments and interpretations are only effective for accountuing
periods, begpinming on or afier the date mentioned ‘against each of them These standards,
amendments and interpretations are ether not relevant to the Fund's operations or are not
expected to have sipmificant impact on the Funds finanesal statements other than certain
additional disclosures.

Amendments to IERS 7 Fmancial Instromenis: Disclosurss’ -
Bupplier finance arrangements January 01, 20234

Amendments to [FES 16 Leases' - Amendments to clanfs how a
seller-lessce  subsequently measures sale and  leassback Jarmary 01, 2024

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements’ -
Classification of liabilities as current or non-current January 01, 2024
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Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on or after)

Amendments to TAS | Presentation of Financial Starements' -
Disclosure of Accounting Policies: Januery 01, 2023

Amendments to TAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements' -
Non-curremi habilities wath covenants January 01, 2024

Amendments to IAS 7 'Starement of Cash Flows' - Supplier
finance arrangements January 01, 2024

Amendments to [AS B 'Acfounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Emors' - Defintion of Accounting
Estimates January 01, 2023

Amendments to JAS 12 Tncome Taxes' - Deferred Tax related to
Assers and Liabilittes ansme from a single transdction January 01, 2023

Amendments to IAS 12 Tncome Taxes' - Temporary exception ic
the requirements regarding deferred tax assets and liabilines
related 1o pillar fwo income taxes Jarmuary 01, 2023

The following new standards and imterpretations have been issued by the International
Accounung Standards Board (IASE). which have not been adopied locally by the Securhies
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP):

EFRS51 First Time Adopuion of Intenational Financial Reporting Standards
IERS 17 Inswrance Comtracts

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are
sat out below. These accoumting policies have been consistemtly applied. unless otherwise

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of balances with banks and short-term hishly liguid
wnvestments with original maturities of thiee months or less.
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Financizl Instroments
Fmancial asseis
Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

On mitial recogmtion. a financial asset is classifisd and measured at amorfised cost, or fair
value through profit or less (FVTPL). The classificanon of financial assets under IFRS 9 1=
generally based on the busmmess model on which a financial asset 1= managed and its
contractual cash flow characteristics.

A financial asset 15 measured at amortised cost 1f 1t mests both of the following conditions and
15 not desienated as at FVTPL:

- it 35 held within 2 business model whose objective i:s to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows: and

- it contractual terms myve nise on specihed dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above
are measured at FVITPL. On mitial recognition, the Fund mayv irevocably designate a financial
aszet that otherwise mests the requirements to be measured at amornsed cost or at EVOCT as

at FVTPL if doing so eltminates or significantly reduces an accounting musmatch that would

otheryise arige.

A financial asset 15 mtially measured at fair value plus, for an tem not at FVITPL, transaction
costs that are dirsctly atinbutable to its acquisinon.

Busineszs model assessment

The Fund determines 1ts business model at the level that hest reflects how 11 manages groups
of financial assets to achizve 1tz busmess objective.

The Fund's business model 15 not assessed on an instument-by-instrument basis, but at a
higher level of aggregated portfolios and is based on observable factors such as:

The objectives for the portfolio, mn particular, whether management's stratezy focuses on
sarming contractual revenue, mamtaming a particular mterest rate profile. matchme the
duration of the financial assets 1o the duration of the Liabilities that are funding those assets or
realizmg cash flows through the sale of the assets;

How the performance of the business model and the financiai assets held wathin that business
model are evaluared and reported to the sattv's key managememt personnel;



The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and. in particular, the way those nsks are managed: and

How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation 1s
based on the fair value of the assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected).

The business mode] assessment 15 based on reasonably expected scenanos without taking
‘'wiorst case’ or 'siress case’ scenaros into account If cash flows after imual recogmition are
realised 1 3 way that is different from the Fund's original expectations, the Fund doss not
change the classification of the remaming financial assets held m that business model, but
mncorporates such mformation when assessing newly onginated or newly purchased financial
assets going forward.

Assessments whether contractual cash flows are solely pavments of principal and
mmterest (SPPI)

As a zzcond step of us classification process the Fund assesses the contracrual terms of
financial to idenufy whether they meet the SPPI test.

Principal’ for the purpose of this test 15 defined as the fair value of the financial asset at mitial
recognition and mayv change over the life of the financial asset (for example. if there are
repavments of principal or amortization of the premum | discount),

The most significant elements of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the
consideration for the time value of money and credit nisk. To make the SPPI assessment. the
Fund applies judeement and considers relevant factors such as the currency i which the
financial asset 1= denominated, and the period for which the interest rate 1536t

In comtrast. contractual terms that imroduce a more than the mimmum sxposure to nsks or
volatility 1n the contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement do not
give rise to contractual cash flows that are solely pavments of principal and interest on the
amount outstanding_ In such cases, the financial asseat 1= requurad to be measured at EVTPL.

Subsequent measurement

The following accounting policies apply to the subseguent measurement of financial assets:

Financial assets These assets are subssquently measured at fair value Net zains and
at FVTPL losses, including any mterest or dividend income, are recogmsed in
mcome statement
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Financial assets These assets are subsequently measured at amornised cost using the

at amortised cost  effective interest method. The amortised cost 1s reduced by impairment
losses (refer note 4.2 1 2). Interest mncome, foreign exchange gams and
losses and impairment are recogmised 10 income statement.

Impairment of financial assets

In relation to the impairment of financial assets; IFRS 9 requirss an entity to account for
expected credit losses and changes 1n thoss expected cradit losses ar each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recogmtion In other words, 1t 1s no longer necessary
fora cradit event to have occurred before cradst losses are recogmized.

The gmding principle of the expected credit loss (ECL) model is to refiect the general pattern
of deteniorathion of improvement i1 the eredit quality of financial instruoments. The amount of
ECLs recognised as a loss allowance or provision depends on the extent of cradn deterioration
since minal recogrition. Under the general approach, there are two measurement bases:

- 12-month ECLs (Staze ). which applies to all items (from mmitial recogmition) as
long as there 18 no sipmficant deterioration 1n credit quality

= Lifeume ECLs (Stages 2 and 3), which applies when a significant mcrease m credit
risk has occurred on an individual or collective basis.

The Fund's financial assets mehude mamly investment, advances and deposuts, dovidend and
profit recervable and bank balances.

SECP through its SCD AMCWRSMUFAP/2017-148 dated November 21, 2017 have
deferred the applicability of above impairment requirements in relation to debt securmies for
mutsal funds Meanwhile, asset management companies shall continue to follow the
requirements of Curcular 33 of 2012 dated October 24, 2012 1n relahon to impairment of debt
securnmss,

Regular wayv conftracts

Regular purchases and sales of financial asssts are recogmised on the trade date - the date on
which the Fund commats to purchase or sell the asset.

Derecognition
Financial assets are derecogmised when the nghis to recetve cash flows from the financial

assets have sxpired or have been transferred and the Fund has transferred substannally all
nsks and rewards of ownership.



4212

4.2

44

Financial hiabilities

All financial habilities are recopnised at the tume when the Fund bscomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument These ars mnnally recognssed at fair value and
subsequently stated at amortised cost

A financial hiability 15 derecogmused when the obligation under the hiability is discharged or
cancelled or expired.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial habilittes are offset and the net amount 1s reportad n the
statement of assets and liabilines when thers 15 a legally enforceable nght to st off the
recogmssd amounts and thers 15 an intentton to settle on a net basis_ orto realise the assets and
settle the liabilines simultanecusly.

Provisions

Provisions are recogmised when the Fund has a present, legal or constructive oblization ds a
result of past events. i1t 15 probable that an outflow of resources embodving sconomic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable eshmate of the amount of oblization can
be mads. Provisions are regularly reviewed and adjusted to reflect the current best estimats.

Taxation

The income of the Fund 15 exempt from Income Tax under clazse 37(3)(vin) of Part I of the
Second Scheduls to the Incomes Tax Ordinance 2001,

Issue and redemption of units

Units are allocated at the offer price prevalent on the day on which funds for purchase of units
are redlized. The offer price represents the net dsset value per umit at the end of the preceding
dav. Issue of units 15 also recorded on realization of funds:

Units redeemed are recordad at the redemption price, applicable to unus for which the Fund
recerves redamption applicattons during business hours of that day. The redemption price
represents the net-asset valus per unit at the end of the preceding day. Redemption of unuts 15
recorded onacceptance of application for redemption



4.6

4.8

Element of income

An equalization account called the ‘element of income | (loss) and capital gains |/ (losses)
included in prices of units issued less those m units redeemed’ 1= created. 1n order to prevent
the dilution of per unst income and distribution of income already pard out on redemption.

Units redeemsd are recorded at the redemption price. applicable to unnts for which the Fund
recetves redemption applications during the business hours of that dav. The redemption price
represents the net asset value per umt as at the close of the busmness day less an amount that
the Pension Fund Manaser may consider to be an appropriate provision of duties and charses:
Redemption of units 1s recorded on acceptance-of application for redempition.

The 'element of income ' (loss) and capital gans ' (losses) in prices of units 1ssued less those
1 pnuts redeemed duning the year 15 wansferred to the income statement .

However, during the vear the SECP through SR O, 1068 (1) 2021 and 1069 (I)2021 made
certain amendments in Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations.
2008 (the NBFC Regulations) and Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005 (the VPS Rulss)
respectively. One of these amendments relate to removal of Rule 7 (g) and () from the VPS
Rules, which contained the principles for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements of Pension Funds: Smince. the gutdance 1ssued under thess rules are not apphicable:
therefore, for the cumrent year no amount 1s refiected in the mmecome statement, the cash flow
statement and the statement of movement 1 parhicipation fund “Element of mecome | (loss)
and capital gams /(loss) included 1n the price of umits 1ssued less those in units redeemed™.

Net assets value per unit

The net assets value (NAV) per untt as disclosed in the statement of assets and habilities s
calculated by driading the net assets of the Fund by the number of units in issue at the year
end.

Revenue recognition

- Fealizsed capital gamns / (lossss) ansing on sale of investmems are mcluded 1n the
income statement on the dare at which the transaction takes place.

- Dividend mcome from equity securities is recognssed when the right to receive the
dividend 1s established.

- Profit on bank deposits 1s recogmised on a ume appormonment basts,

= Unrealised gains |/ (lossss) ansing on re-measursment of mvestments classifiad as

Tmancial assets at faw value through profit or loss' are included in the income
statement 1z the year in which thev anse.



4.9

4.10

111

412

= Return on Government securities, Sukmks. bank balances and term deposms: are
recogmsed at the rate of return implicit 1n the mnstrument on a iime proportionats

Expenses

All expenses including NAV based expenses are recogmised 1 the income statement on a time
apportionment hasis.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency fransactions are transiated mto the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevashing at the date of the transactions. Forsign exchanee gains and losses resulung
from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetarv asssts and
hiabithties denominated i foreipn currencies at the vear end exchange rates are recogmised m
th= income statement.

Transactions with related parties / connected persons

Tranzactions with related pamies | connected persons are based at amm's length ar nommal
commercial rates on the same terms and conditions as applicable to third party transactions.

Remunsration to the Management Company and the Trustes 15 determmed 1n accordance with
the provisions of Voluntary Pension System Rules. 2005 and the Trust Deed respectively

Expenses
All expenses chargeable to the Fund including remuncration of the Manazsement Company,

Trustee fee and annual fee of the SECP ars recogmised in the Income Statement on an accrual
basis
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BANK BALANCES June 30, 2022 June 30, 2022
Equity Debe Aoney Market Commodity sl Equity Money Market Commodity Total
i
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund & Sub-Fund
Note (Rupee: in "000)
Profit and lozs sharine accounts 5.1 5,760 52E 661 74E 901 533 1,333 650 o0.211 2.550.011
Current accourtz - F T 14 - 244
30,739:70 322 668 T4E 908 33 1333673 o211 30,97 2,560,155
These carry mark-up at the vates ranommg from 13:30% to 22.65% (2022: B.5% to 15.5%) per annum.
INVESTAIENTS -NET
June 38, 2013 Junz 30, 2022
Equity Debt AMoney Market Commodity Equity Money Market Commedity
Total Total
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund
Note (Rupees in "000)
Investments by category
‘At fair value threugh profit or loss'
Listed equity securiies 6.1 683,373 - - 685,373 1,314,190 1.316,189
Govemnment securites -
hfarket Treasury Bills 6.2 - 50613 1,345,368 1639470 = -
Pakistan Invesimznt Bosids 6.3 - 3X.72% 423980 856,705 - =
Debt s=curitiez - Tenm Finance
Certificates ' Sukuks &4 - 138478 - 28478 - i B o
Total 685573 030516 1.973.846 3,310,033 1.316.190 1408307




6.1

Equity securities - Fair Value Throogh Profit or Loss

{ﬂrdin.a.lj Shares of Rs. 10 each unles: indicated otherwize)

Total carrvimg Unrealised s Tyl et
Purchased / honus = ] value appreciation / Alarket value a5 a| | Market value az a :
Name of Investee Company Note Avar July 01, 2022| /right recsived Sold anng the Asat June 30, asat Total Market value {dfmp.[uu!iun] on percentage of net | | percentage of total p!“ﬂ_“tg! of paid-up
F . vear 2023 as at June 30, 2023 . . capital of investee:
during the year June 30, revaluation of assets investments
2023 investments o s
inv
Quoted imvestments Number of shares {Rupees in '000) Percentage
Appliances
Waver Homs Appliznees T mrted - 25,900 (25,0003 Q00 - 3987 3087 oot G:0% 001
Antom otive = + N
Ghandars Tndoziness - 25000 {25,000] = = = = - - -
Panther Tyyes Limtied 387,800 67,000 (445 504) 11,500 368223 237808 (141 01%5) 031 33 020
Treet Corporation Lonited - 135,000 {125.000) - - - - - - -
Bonking - - -
Alled Bank Timited 17ET00 - (173,700) - - - - - - -
Bank Al-falah Tmsted LITHEA 238 156 (L.057.500) LO07T R34 34333 836 F2 3131 (1,721.345) 4458 4788 1871
Banl: Al-Habib Limsted a02,309 - (596 864 5445 316,137 235333 (80.304) 032 034 0.02
Faysal Bank Limited 1467775 836.000 (2,263 481) 38294 972323 772713 (199.350) 1:06 1.13 0327
Habib Banl T imued 34E 169 742 000 {1204 500) E33.669 10,014 753 8035 041 (79,712) 1350 1454
Habib Metropolizn Bank T amited 469,000 - (462,000) - - - - - =
MCE EBank T maited - 187,000 {44620 142.080 16,191 853 16.263 208 12043 22323 2373
Meezan Bank Limred 213653 582.688 (437400 338,981 33,033,396 28277, 789 (3.733.807) 46.05 4272 23
Unpited Bank I imged 1000 300 412300 (L17E:5317) 241283 274077280 28360404 1283124 3879 4138 GG
Cables - _ =
Pakiztan Cables Limited 79,300 25089 (23,600) 81,789 E.189.567 6781944 (1 417.623) .28 Qe 003
Cement - -
Attock Cement Palustan Limited - 220 000 {20,000) 200.000 14 5354 197 16.574.600 1619803 2267 2418
Cherat Cement Company Limited 300 252,300 (253,000) - - - - - - -
Faup Cement Company Lomited - 1,000,008 - 1000000 11,683.350 11,760,000 76650 16.09 1716 15035
Ghani Gt Hides = - - - - - - - - -
Kohat Cemaat Pakizian Lonted 246 820 87,151 (1482615 187,710 25355928 31562 054 7,208 Y26 4454 4751 050
Luoelky Cement Limited 81,352 130,400 {178,600) 43,762 20,195,717 22 347 703 2,651,986 31.25 3334
Maple T e=f Cemant Factory Fumited 327420 LROO RES (1521 056) 5340 19.016.094 19,083 557 Of5 443 27.33 2016
Pionser Cement Dimieel - 380512 {365 ,000) 74 512 1201 &40 2123455 531306 290 3.10
Ceramics - - -
Shabbir Tiles end Ceramics Limited 41.000 . {41,000) - - - - - - -
Chemicals - - N
Dezeon Oxvehem Limited - T24.500 (445 0003 270500 6,753,732 6. 769,480 13758 .26 458 o235
Drvriea Palsistan [ imitad 10,400 23,900 (20.100) 13200 1,851,172 1,789,542 (61.830) 245 261 0.06
Tttehad Chamicais Ermited - 210,500 (210 500) - - - - - - -
Himit FeamT tmated 030 300 382000 (525 500) H2.000 T 24842 6.438,620 (844222 8.820 938 02§
Spera Chemical - 1200 £1.204) - - - - - -
Synthetic Prodoct: Enferpriges Tomted 24 518 - (15.000) 9518 134,080 03,945 351143 014 14
Cnnglnm Erates _ - - -
Engro Corporaizon T imiterd 51521 Ie4a1e {263;600) 2 F37 22409553 21 502 519 (BOT.034) 241 137 Gos
Engineering - z =
Service Industries Dimited 03112 1300 (33 400] 59.012 20742 784 15488 470 (3253314) 2119 22 60
Fertilizer - -
Engro Fertilizers Limited 233.000 622,601 (724.513) [31.086 12406512 12 449 127 §2313 17.06 12.19 012
Fatima Fertihzer Company Lonted 30500 - (339,407 83 3313 272 (743} 0.00 .00 .00
Faup Fertilizer Company Limited 377616 202624 (643,794 136,446 13,436,581 13451744 24.837) 18.37 1250 024
Food and Personal Care . - =
Bunnys Limited - 253,000 (205,000) 48.000 1,107 887 To3. 800 (311.087) 108 1.16 0.04
Iationd] Foods Limited 30,000 106300 (%3 300) 62900 6.568,791 6.189.360 (379451) 247 a0s
Shevan International T smded 50 200 1,700 {33,700) 37300 6325520 3.089 666 (2.335923) 546 582
The Orzanic Mest Company Lunited 310,000 324.767 {934.767) 20,000 1.828 730 148,420 20 650 53 21 0%
Unity Foods Limited - LOTe.000 (819,000) 250000 4.029.980 4.063 800 33820 538 3893 034
Glass - -
Tang Glazs Industorss Tonited = 338,732 (63.500) 27¥252 22:608 328 18744 581 {3.863.867) 2564 EF B 063




Total carrying Unrealized e e
Purchased / honus : value appreciation / Market value as a| | Market value asa 3 Z
Name of Invesree Company Note Az ar July 01, 2022| / right received Sold during tae A EE‘J:Df 36 as at ORIk 1"31:1& {ﬂmlm?p tion) en percentage of net | | percentage of total FE“EI.HHEE :::fp;ml—np
during the vear year 03 June 38, a5 8t June.30, 2023 revaluation of assels invesiments capifal ol inyestes
2 5 fompany
2023 invesiments

Quoted investments Number of shares ————{Ruopees i "000) ———— Percentage

Healthcare - - -
Shifs Imernationel Hospitals Timited 62,110 83,000 (7. 794) 61410 7419343 7.3 1 102 768 1029 1008

[nsurance - -

Adamyes Insurance Company Limited 3. 500 < (4,580 E . = - . =

Media - - -
Huom Network Limited 3,399,500 1008200 (1,975.000) 2A33 300 14 300632 13.211.056 (1B2.576) 1544 2073 10.14

il and gas exploration companies z - g
Mari Petroleum Company Limisd 78414 12310 (68,082} 33,662 30457815 35,839,412 (3,618.203) 49.02 52 26 020
01l and Gas Development Company Lunited L0672 628.000 [L371,358) 303,763 31607 382 30.713 514 (893,848 4301 4481 L4l
Pake=ten Oulfields T mited 3564 1007358 (E2.141) 34233 223045374 21701201 (B03.173) 2081 iLTe 02
Palnstan Petroleam T imisted 1138005 1152075 {£2,013:500) 321580 19706976 19.018.741 (685.733) 26.02 75
O and gaz marketing compantes - -

Atfteck Petroleum Limitad - 5.000 (53,0003 - - - = 2 -
Palkistan State Oi Company Timited 33,539 274 000 {323,030) 2580 335872 287,405 (58,487) 030 0.42 0.02
Sui Northern Gas Pipelines T imited 217,066 §32.000 (804 BO3) 242 361 10235 457 9537 816 (697 641) 1305 13.02 037

Packaging - = -
Palwtan Alumsnm Beverace Can T imited 314500 192 000 {263,000) 243500 22153 B62 11101 510 2847 648 1o 15629
Cantury Paper and Board Limited 223200 156 046 (34.500) 144716 13917311 12 559,637 (1,358.184) 7.18 1533

Pharmacenticals = =
AGP Limuted To:R00 g5.000 (167 538) =8 434996 41%.4830 (16366) 057 .61
Loty Pharma Tamitad B40.300 125003 (177.361) TOT-144 25828, 738 17,011,055 (2.817,705) 2337 2482
Feorozaon= 1 sh - 25600 98,1007 29,508 18,238,758 121248075 (3.000.681) 1675 1787 017
Hichaonn I sborateries Limited 39972 9874 (8,330) 31396 17387719 13083327 (3404452 1213 20.40 0.05
IBL HealthCate Limited 23220 73,822 (90,000) 7042 322810 229217 (93.593) 031 033 002
Sanofi Aventis Pakistan Limited B 2500 (140) 7560 6403200 < 085,760 (1,317.440) 506 T42 0.03
The Searle Company Limited 6,200 1725 - 8.623 52238 330,510 {421728) 043 (4B 451

Power Genera_ﬁ.nn 2 - B
Wizhat Chuman Power Longed - 863,600 (863, 500) e 178 1320 43 00 0.00
Nizhat Povet Lumited 81,000 7253000 (B16,000) - - - = - -

Power genzration and distribution = + N
Huob Power Compamy T inatfed 005115 LO76,000 (1,428 400) /AFI5 35.865.136 FRA57 010 1592374 5261 5511 g2 02
Lalpir Powers = 159,000 {Z35,000) - - - - - - -
Szif Power Limted 339,000 - (330,000) - - = = 2 - =

Shipping | - . :
Palstan Wantonal Shipping: Corporation - Z0.760 3, 722070 373770 3,722070 3,936,141 283071 %38 74 Lo

Steel . - =
Anirelt Stealz Tumited - 251,600 (231,000} - - - = 2 -

Iintermatipsia] Stec=le T imifad 07 030 211,000 {308.0310) - - - - - =
Mughal Tron and Steel Tndustriss T imited €515 138363 (121,818} 23,000 1284031 211000 (53.031) 1.66 177 oo

Sugar and Allied Indostries " - e
Shahmyrrad Suzar Mills T rrited 32000 3,600 26,000) 29.000 250%5,719 4 358,000 1,844 281 503 6.35 .08

Technology _ = =
Avancern P = 293,381 {258,500 3881 268520 176,919 LE.610) 023 2%

Imapge Palsztan [ imsted - 864 2800 - BE64 800 1.5346. 740 §.353 968 BOTI28 1143 r1e 0.59
Svstems T imited 0623 TEATT (103, 726) FA5H 22.616,727 21 509 732 (617 425) 3009 32.10 0.05

Teiecommunication - - -

Ajr Link Communication Limited 2 500 147 000 (133.500) 20.000 634,443 308,500 (237,845 054 058 001




Total carrying Unrealized e e
Purchased / honus : value appreciation / Market value as a| | Market value asa 3 Z
Name of Invesree Company Note Az ar July 01, 2022| / right received Sold during tae A EE‘J:Df 36 as at ORIk 1"31:1& {ﬂmlm?p tion) en percentage of net | | percentage of total FE“EI.HHEE :::fp;ml—np
during the vear year 03 June 38, a5 8t June.30, 2023 revaluation of assels invesiments capifal ol inyestes
= o company
2023 invesiments
Quoted investments Number of shares ————{Ruopees i "000) ———— Percentage
Texrile = = =
Ar-Tahus Limited (PREMA) A20 350 224 036 (37.300) 566808 12035230 LO0.077,108 (1,058,142 1502 1602 04T
Gul Ahmed Textile Mills Limu=d 284,164 48 300 {93[#.6?9] 1,263 66,637 34 897 (31.640) 0.03 065 00
Intertoop Lunited 30122 384,019 (385,647) 498503 19194970 17,554,063 £1.610.902) 2403 2366 019
Eohinoor Taxtile Mille Temited 620500 103300 [425,0007 308.000 15333190 I3.680.230 FT.690 21435 1R G2
L odds T imited 601500 - (&02,500) - - - - =L - .
Wiahiat Chynen T mited 2700 120000 {122, 700) - - - - - =
Nt Wlls 1 imaded - 253,000 {353,000) - - - - - -
The Crescent Textile Mille Timitad 430,500 . (450,000) 500 g.003 5,450 2349 0.0 o) 0.00
Towellers Limuted 138,700 2000 (118, 100) 58600 3 352353 G184 878 2632523 846 2042
713635 GE3.Z73 (2B2625E)
Total a3 at Jone 30, 2023 13,635 683373 (28.263)
Total as at June 30, 2622 1.501.065 1316190 (184 876)

The above eguity secorny meivde 0873 million shares (June 30, 2822- 1 373 mullion shares) pledged with 2anonai Clearms Company of Paletan [ onged having market value of Red2 747 mullion (Fune 30, 2022: Bz 58 622 mulhon) for susrantesmg-settlament of the Fond's tradss m
zecordsnes with cirentar Wo. 11 dated Qetober 23_ 2007 i4ned by the SECE

€12 The Finance Act 2014 has brought amendments m the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 whershy the boniss shares received by the sharcholder are to be treated a3 imcome and a tax at the eate of § percent 1s to be appliad on value of bonus shares determmed on the basws of dayend price on
the first day of closure of books. The tax 1 to be collected at source by the company declaring bonus shares wiuch shall be considered as final discharge of tax habulity on such meoms The Mamgement Company of the Fund yeintly with other asset management companses and Mutua]
Fusds Association of Pakistan, has filed a petition in Henorable Smdh Hizh Court to declars the amendments brought in Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 with reference 1o tax on bonus shares for callective imestment schemes a= null and vord 2nd not applicable on the mutual funds based on
the premuge of exemptions aveileble to mutoal foods under clanse 99 of Part Tand clanse 478 of Part TV of Sscond Schedule to the Income Tax Ordmance, 2001, The Honomable gmdh}ljgh Court-has granted stay order till the fmal outcomes of the case An mvestes company of the Fund,
i purznance of the aforessyd amendment withheld sharez- equivalent to 3% of bonus emitlement of the Fund having far mardet value of B2 1.04 3 milbion (Jupe 30, 3322: Bz 1 337 ouilion):at peniod end, Such shares havenot been depostied by the mvestes company i CDC account of
Income Tax department The Tund has wiclnded i b= myvestments thie withheld shares and recorded them ot fawr macet vahie at vear snd: However. through Fmance Act 2018 the tax on'bonus = withdrawn.

Finarce Act, 2018 effective from July 01, 2018 has omitted Saction 236 of the ITO, 2001 requiring every company quoted on stock exchange issuing bomus shares to the shareholders of the company, to withhiold 5% of the bonus shares to be ssusd. Accordingtly, post July 01, 2018,
shares are not beins withheld 3t the time of bonus 1z5ue,



6.2 Gavernment securities - Treasury Bills "at fair valus through profit or less’
(certificates’ having a nominal valne of Rs.100.000 each)

Face valus Balance as at June 30, 2023
Aarket value as | Market value as a
Particolars As at July 01, I’u.rdfn:-ed Tixpaxed I_ Asat June 30.| Carrying Appreciation / tpuecentugent ?EITcentage ok ota)
1023 during matured during 2023 b Alarket value (diminution) net assets of the | investments of the
the vear the vear Soh-Fund Sub-Fund
(Ruopees in "000) Percentage ——————
Held by Debt Sub-Fund
Treazury Biliz - year - 600,000 (492.060) 108,000 BUG1E £9.613 {537 G 14%
Treasmry Bills - 3 monthe - 2821500 (2,821 5000 - - - - - -
Juse 30 2023 - 3421500 (3.313,500) 108 Q00 B0.618 89813 {537 = z
Jose 30, 2022 - 360000 £3.695,000) T, 30 000 = = =
Held by Money Market Sub-Fund
Treasury Bills - 1-year 200,000 (200 O0E -
Treasury- Bills - 3 months - 16.336:500 (14,920, 5{) L616.000 1.542.861 1.549.866 +.7E 7% ot
Trezzury Biliz - S-inonths - 656,000 (636,000 = = - - = -
Jue 30, 2023 = 17.392:500 {15.776.300) 1,616 000 = = - - -
Juse 30 2022 - 22515000 {22.515,000) - - - -
6.2.1 These Market TressturyBills cavnied efective vield ranging from 212596 40 21:00% (2022 7.07% to 14.3%%) pet sdnum.
6.} Government securities - Pakistan Investment Bonds "at fair valoe through profit or loss’
{certificates having a neminal value of Bs.100,000 each)
Face value Balance as at June 30, 2013
Alarket value as’| Market value asa
Particulars XNote | Asat Julv 1, Pnr:]::nsed ISpeced ’I. Az at June 30,| Carrving Appreciation / % pereentage of ]_““Eﬂ“ge of tatal
2033 x during marured doring 2031 ‘HIE;.]E = | Market value (diminution) nezt asseis of the | imvestments of the
the vear the vear Sub - Fund Sub - Fund
Rupees in "000 %o
Held by Debt Sub-Fand
Pekiztan Investment Bonds - 3 years 150,000 (150,000) - - - - - -
Pakistan Investment Bonds - 5 years 730,400 (730,006 - - = - = =
Pakictan Investment Bonds- 10 yesrs 00 000 (SO6.000) = = i 2 2 =
Palkistan Investment Bonde-FRB-11 475,000 {473,000) - -
Pakistan Investment Bands-FRE-19 €31 423 004 (230 000) 175000 190775 100,735 - 18% 20%%
Pakistan Tnvestment Bonds-FRB-21 = 1,674,600 (912308} 162 309 151 502 151,602 - 16%% 235%
Pekistan Investment Bonds FRB-22 100.900 (E00.00) - - - -
Paliztzn Investment Bonds-FEB-24 1,100,000 {1 100G,000) - - = =
Paloistan Investment Bond=FRB-26 100,000 {EO0,000) - - - -
Pakistan Investmient Bonds-FRB-3 75,000 - T5.000 71,603 71803 = T 11%
June 30, 2023 . 5,042,600 (4,637 300) 412 300 423 98 423 280 - = -

Jume 302022

6.5.1 These Pabustan Investment Bond carried effective yield ranomo from 18 554% t0 21 0753%: (2022: § 72% 1o 1292) per andium




8.4

6.4.1

Debt Securities - Term Finance Certificates / Sukuks 'ar fair value throngh profic or loss'

{face valoe of Rs.5,000 each unless otherwize stated)

" Carrving Market value as | Market value az a
: Purchased Dizpozed / : - Alarket values y
Particulars Note Asat J:llg. 01, s iiatared dosiie As ar June 30.| value as at a4 Fune 30, .—lp?ri:tml‘iﬂn { | = percentage of ?eutntage of total
2022 W vige i =013 June 20, 2031 {diminution) | net assets of the | investments of the
Y ) 2023 Sub-Fund Sub - Fund
Number of units "Rupees in "000 %

Held by Deht Sub-Fund
Jehangir Siddiop: and

Company Limited

(Izzoe date—July 12, 2017) 6:4:1 10.000 - - 10.000 6,427 6. 260 (237) 0.60%% 0.046%
Sambs Bank Timted
{[ssie date - Marech 01, 2021} 641 339 - - 330 13105 32074 (131) 315% 5.067%
Bank Al Habsb Limited
(Esue date-- September 30, 262 ) 64.1 5.000 - - 5:000 60,884 39,244 (L&640) ¥ith 0.19%
Banl of Punjab
(Fzaue date - Apral 17, 2023) 641 £ 3,000 3.000 30.000 30.000 -
June 30, 2023 18,330 3,000 - 21,330 130486 128478 {2.068) 231% B.%
Jume 30,2022 10330 5.000 = 183330 90:345 92117 57
Sicnsficant terms and conditions of term finance certificdtes outstendine &t the vearend are as follows:
MName of security . Maturity

fPerannum)

Bank Alfalah Limed

Jehangir Siddiop: and Company Limited
Samba Bank Limited

Bank Al Habib Timifeg

Barnk of Punjab

SMERBOR - 1.35%
tAMRIBOR — 1 400
oA KTBOR +.135%
M ETBOR < 0.75%
SMEIBOR +1.25%

Febrrary 20, 2021
Joly 18,2022
March 01, 2031

September 30 2031

April 17, 2023




';-.I

DIVIDEND AND PROFIT RECEIVABLE

June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
AMonev Monew
. Equity Debt i Commeodity Equity Debt = Commodity
B Sob-Fund SubFund ot ShTud o™ SubFund SubFusd At cohFund 0 oA
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund
(Rupees in "000)
Dhvadend recervable = = = = = 381 . < = 581
Profit recervable on bank accounts and term deposit
receipts S06 G (198 2.634 118 18.77a 732 3.098 23273 17 27140
Profit receivabls on Government securitiss and term
finance cernficates = 16,177 g 140 =: 25317 = 7331 = = T.331
08 25275 17,704 118 44003 1.333 10420 23273 17 35.052
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
June 30, 2623 June 30, 2022
AMonev Monev
- Equity Debt i Commodity Equity Debt it Commodity
st Sub-Fund SubFund 27K GubFund  1°?!  SubFund SubFumd P Sub Fund Lo
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund

(Rupees in "000)

Security deposit wath Central Depository
Company of Pakistan Lumited (CDC) 1090 100 - - 200 100 100 - - 200
Security depositwith National Cleanng

Company of Pakistan Limuted (NCCEL) 23500 - - - 2,500 2.500 - - - 2.300
Margin deposit account = - - 2916 2816 - = = 2,452 2452
Receivable agamnst main collection account
against 1ssuance of units 250 188 7074 29 8,741 11904 1821 5.853 281 19929
Other recervables it 27 181 26 245 11 117 182 30 360
Recenvable from UBL EML 930 - - 20 970 - - - 20 20
3811 81> 8,155 2,861 15,572 14,515 2,108 6,033 2,803 25461
ADVANCE INCOME TAX

The income of the Fund 1s exempt from tax under clause 99 of Part I of the Second Schedule of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (ITO 2001). Further. the Fund 1s exempt under clause 47(B)
of Part IV of Second Schedule of ITO 2001 from withholding of tax under section 131 and 233 of TTO 2001, The Faderal Board of Revenue (FBR), through a circular "CNe l (43) DG
(WHT) / 2008-VolIl- 66417-B7 dated May 12. 2013, made 1t mandatory to obtain exemption cerificates under section 132 (1) of the ITTO 2001 from Commussioner Inland Revenus (CIR).
Prior to recetving tax exemption cerdificate(s) from CIR. withholdine apent had deducted advance tax under ssction 13] of ITO 2001 1n prior and current periods. The Management Company
15 confident that the amount will be refunded to the Fund.
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11.

PAYABLE TO THE UBL FUND MANAGERS LIMITED - PENSION FUND MANAGER

June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
Aloney Money
Egquity Drebt Market Commodity Equity Deht Market Commodity
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Total Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Total
Note (Rupees in '004)
Femuneration pavable io
Pension Fund Manager 101 1,620 308 B3 35 2858 1,620 368 263 35 2,688
Smndh Sales Tax oo remunermtion
to the Penzion Fund Manager 1832 21060 43 123 5 329 21 48 123 i 339
Sellitis and marketing expense pavable 103 3002 2401 5.716 - 14,109 5902 240 5,716 - 14,109
Allocated snpenees 104 151 G672 2,658 - 3,191 461 672 - - 1,433
Sales Joad payable 187 318 2633 4 384 113 332 1918 4 2392
Orher payables 4 14 14 27 39 = 14 272 27 2,117
8475 1321 11.5%3 7l 24379 8106 3.B5% 10,786 _ 71 13127

In accordanee with Regulation 678G (1) of the NBFC Ezgulations, the Pension Fund Manager, 15 allowed to charge an annual manasement fee of 2 5% of the averape of the values of the net assets of Equity Sub-Fund
046 9% of the average of the value of the net assets of Money Market Sub-Fund, 0.76% of the averaze of the value of nst assets of Income commadity Sub-Fund and 0 38% of the averaze of the value of net asets of
Debt Sub-Tund Accordingly, thiz ratio s within the maxirum Hmit of 4. 3%, 2%, & 2 3% prescnbed under the NBEC Regulations for Equity Sub Fund. Money Market Sub Fund and Debt Sib Foad. Dunng the vear
Penzion fund manager charged 2 Fe, [%eand 1%¢ of the average value of net:azzet for Equaty Sub-Fond, Debt Sub-fond and MMoney Marke: Sub-Fund

The Provincial Government of Sindh has tevied Sindh Sales Tax at the rate of 13% (2022 13%) on the remuneration of the Pension Fund Manaper theough the Sindh Sales Tax on Servces Act 2011

In accordance with Curcnler 11 dated July 5: 201%, the SECP has sllowed the Asset Management Companies to charge selling and marketing expenses to all categonies of open-ended mufual funds (except funds of
funds) upto & meximum bimit approved by the Board of Dhrectors of the Menacement Company a5 part of annual plan Accordinely, the Management Company bazed on i own dizcreiion haz chersed selling and
marketing expensas while keeping 1n view the stefall refurn sad the totsl expense ratio lomit of the Fund a3 defined undar the NBFC Regplatiens at the sate 0.16%.

In sccordance with Begulancn 60 of the NBEC Rerulanions the Mansgement Company t3 envtled to charge fees gnd expensss related to remstrar services, scoomning, operation and valuaton services, related 10 &
Callzetive Investment Scheme (CIS). Accordingly, the Management Company can cherge allecated expenses to the CIS bazad od it diferetion. provided the Total Expense Ratis (refer apte 20) prescribed by the SECP
vide SRO 639 (1) / 2019 dated Juie 20, 2019 15 complisd with

PAYABLE TO CENTRAL DEPOSITORY COMPANY OF PAKISTAN LIMITED - TRUSTEE

June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
Aloney Aloney
Eguity Drebi Alarketr Commodity Equity Debt Market Commodity
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Toial Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Total
Note "Rupees in "000
Ramuneration payable 111 L ar 243 H 431 35E i3 133 - 739

[
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Sales tax on remuneration pavable 112 11 13 32 -

101 114 275 1 487 182 b k27 3 834



The Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited s entitled to remuneration at the following ratez on aet assets of the Fund:

Net Assets Tariff per annom

Tpto Ra 1,000 mallicn 0.15%per annnm
Above B2 1001 millies srd up to- e 3 000 million
Above Rz.3.001 million and up 1o B3.6,000 millicn

Bzl Smalhor plus O 10% per annum. of net:azsets; on amount exceedng 21 000 million
Bz 35 million ploz 0.08% per anmmm of netazzets on'amount exceedimng Ba 3 000 million

1z

Abeve Bz26 000 million

Bz 3 9 milbon plos §.06% per annum of net:azsets, on amount exceedms B=.6.000 million

Sales tax at the rate of 13%(2022: 13%) on the remunerstion of the Trostee 15 applied under the proviszons of Sindh Sales Tax on Servdices Act, 2011

PAYABLE TO THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN

Thie reprezentz annug} SECP fee SECP wide SE.G 1620 (T 2019, dated December 24, 2019 revized stz annual fee 1o 00430 (2022; 0.025%) per annum of average dulvnet aszets of the Fund

ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

June 3{, 2023 June 30, 2022
Aloney Money
Eguity Drebit Alarket Commodity Equity Debt Market Commodity
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Total Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Toral
Note Rupess in "000

Provision for Sindk Werkerz welfsre Fiind 13:1 - - = E = = 5 - = z
Provision for mdsrerct duties amd texes 131z 3,857 4590 2578 194 13268 e 4500 2578 o4 13248
Audstors femunseation 2 c2 &2 az i6s 23 20 26 3B 109
Zakai payable 4 i 226 - 237 4 5 75 - 14
Withholding tax payabls B, 7E4 a1z 3.654 43 12,308 3128 3381 796 56 10.861
Brokerzee pavable 3,731 177 o1 E 3000 5678 182 220 - 6,078
Legal and professional fees 36 41 3 S 142 18 47 17 og 151
Pavable asainst derivative contract 13.3 - - - 12¢ 129 - - - 1.011 1,011
Salzs load payveble 54 a3 357 22 1256 500 622 254 16 1541
Otherz - - - 290 240 27 207 3 200 ¥
19303 5451 6431 §32 31 647 15.374 9,133 7369 1.674 33.750
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The Sindh Workers Welfare Fund Act. 2014 (SWWF Act) was mtroduced after the 18th amendment to the constitution of Pakistan According. to the Act every industrial establishment located in
Siadh and having total mcome 18 any accountme vear, not less than 0.5 mullion was reguirsd to pay Smdh Workers' Welfare Fund, of that year sum equal to two percent of such mcome. The Mumeal
Fund Associanion of Palastan (MUFAP) had contested the applicability of the Act on mutual funds to Sindh Revenue Bozrd (SEB), based on the fact that these did not emplov anmy workers. However,
the fund on recommendation of MUFAP. as 2 matter of abundant caution, made a provision in respect of SWWE. '

SEB vide iz letter dated August 12, 2021, had mtimated that as mutual funds do not quahfy as Financial Instrtutions’ Industrial Establishiment, therefore they were nor hable to pay SWWF. This
development was discussad with MUFAP and also consulted with Secunties and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). The Nanonal Investment Trust (NIT) alonzwith other Asset Manazement
Companies, had reversed the entire provision of Rs (0.764 mullion, recosnized from inception of fund te August 12, 3021 on Avugust 13, 2021 mulhion and same was recordad as imcome 1n the income
statement. The SECP concumed for reversal of provision vide s letter dated August 30, 2021 and gomg forward, no further provision for SWWE were 1o made in financial statements from August 13,
2021

Provision for indirect duties and taxes

A3 per. the requirements of fhe Finance Act 2013, Federal Fxcize Duty (FED) at the rate of 6% on the remuneranon of the Pension Fund Mansger was apphed with-effect fom June 13, 2013, The Penmon Fond

Manazer i5 of the view that sines the remuneration ia ‘already subject to the provineis! Ssles tan firther levy of FED resuls in double taxation which doas not appear to b the spint of the law. The matter wan
collectively taken up by the Pension Fund Manager jointly with other Asset Mansgement Compantes | Pension Fund Managess dnd Trustees of respective Collective Inmvestmient Schemes (C183) / Pension Funds, through
& Constitutional Petition filed in the Honorable Sindh Hish Conrt (3HC) during Ssptember 2013 In this respect the BHC had i=sued a stav arder asamst the recovery of TED due to which the Fond has not made any
parments for TED since June 13, 2013

Through Finance Act. 2016, FED on services rendered by Non-Banking Financial Institntions (NBFIs) inchiding Asset Management Companies ! Pension Fund Managers, which are already subject to provincial sales
tax, has been withdrewn. Therefore, provision for FED has not been recorded in thesze financial statements from July 01, 2016 onwards:

The reprenents net unrealized loss on cash settled futore sold contracts with settlement date of August 10, 2023 (2022 Faly 26_2022)



14, CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITAENTS

Thers weie no contmoensees snd commmiments sutstsndine, excent s dietlosed monote 6.1 9 af Jome 30, 2023 (2022:350)

15 NUAIBER OF UNITS INISSUE
June 30, 2023 30 Jun22 |
, . Alpney , , Aloney .
Parriculars Equity Drebe ? Commaodity Sub- ) Equity Diebt . Commodity Sub-
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Afch) - Fund bl Sub-Fund Sub-Fund et D Fund o
Fond Fund
Beginmnz of the vear 1212136 3515776 6057 453 355300 11,747 865 2268411 ™8 3,003,358 5102,787 83783 L0458 3R
Unnts degned during the vear 386 583 2 255 668 B E04247 17898 11,7343%6 333130 1428890 3563441 2243635 5.748.736
Effect of reallocation £ - - - . (201.167) 232,003 146,343 11,587 315 968
Units redeensd durme the vear (1.323:183) (2 B33:345) (3.193:118) (291545 (2861 408 (621 34E) (1.375318) (1.733.319) [61:238) {3:376.221)
Tota] unme m =mee 61 the end of the vear 982531 2817880 £.6688 372 11853 13 62 833 2.120.303 3.056.773 3010008 243 813 11,747 865
16, CONTERIBUTION TABLE
Comribotin: (net of front end fee) recened durme the vear
A3z at June 30, 2023
Eguity Sub Fund Debt Sub-Fund Alonev Aarket Sub-Fund Commaodity Sub-Fund Total
T Rupees = Rupees : Rupees = Rupees . Rupees
F Units: TU'nits Tnits Tnie U nit
o . (000) " (000) - (000) : (000} § (000)
Indroduals: 396,583 438059 2255 568 731,658 L B A 2201324 TIE08 13481 11,734 306 3472533
Az ar June- 30, 2022
Eqguiry Sab Fund Debt Sub-Fund Alonev Aarket Sub-Fund Commodity Sub-Fund Total
From: . Bupeces - . Rupees . Bupees - Rupees .. Bupees
Units: Uitz Unit U mit Units
2 (000) i (000) ? (000) : (000) (000)
Individusls 333273 34537 1,428,600 3321 3.565.441 B66.281 F24 365 38849 5748.736° 1708 888
17, FINANCIAL INCOME
June 30, 2023 AJum-22
. : Monev Sy , Aloney ;
Particulars Equity Debt _ : Commodity Sub- Equity Diebt : Commodity Sub-
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund ke St Fund ol Sub-Fund Sub-Fund ashet Sk Fund ol
Fund Fund
Profit on Government of Pakistan - FIBsarah Suknk -t a5 230 56789 = 123339 = 301497 = 2 107
ofit on Prvetely Pleced Sulubs TFSe = 13410 - 3410 - 8337 - 8337
Profit on-hank halances 11.297 51765 2345 157242 6,382 42230 65 534 1.5 117,646
Profit on Term Depout Pecerpts - 3038 8548 - 10483 - 1.330 5350 - 6.5E0
ofit on Tregsory Balls - 23330 204 219 £ 237 445 - 13965 51 706 - 68,71}
11397 173,043 240,238 1345 536,813 6,381 58,159 125850 LE0D 231,921




ATDITOR'S REMUNERATION

June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
Equity Sub-Fund  Debt Sub:Fund Afoney Market Sob: Commodity Sub- Total Equity Sub- Debt Sub.Fund MMonev Marker Sob. Commodity Sub- okl
Y Fund Fond Fond Fund Fand
Rupees '000

Ammatandit fee 77 T Tl ki 309 78 Ta T8 b 308
Peew of condensed mienm fnancial mfrmaion 27 <7 £7 <7 138 < 46 47 48 i85

X 2z x4 124 427 125 12 23 n 404
Salesiax H 16 i4 16 63 i 1 11 i -
Crut of pocke: expennes e 2 72 72 J3c 15 12 I3 |2 34

213 413 213 213 330 3 145 131 44 392
TAXATION
Yo provimon for texation for the vesr ended Jume 30, 2023 has been mads in wew of the exemption available to the Fund mder clavse 57 (2) (viily of Part T of the 2nd Schedule to the Income Tax Ordimance, 2001
EARNINGS / (LOS3) PER UNIT
Earmnings per unit (EPU) has ot been disclozad ¢ in the opinion of the Pension Fund Menacers the detenminstion of the cumnlstive weichted sverase number of cutstandins unite is not practicble
TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO
SECP nide SE.O. 1068 (1) 2624 dsted Auonst 23, 2071 requires that Volontary Penmon Schemes (VPSs) to disclose the anmishsed total expense mtio (TER) of the Fund, based on the curent period results total expense mtic 5 4.10%, 1389, 1.53%: & 242%, which

mehides 04375, 0.12%, 0.14% & 0.13% representng Government Lavy, Sindh Workers’ Welfire Fund, 2nd the SECP fee of Equity Sub Fund Mioney MMarkes Sob Fund, Debt Sub Fund snd Commedsty Sub Fund respectively. Thin ratio 13 within the meximum hme of 4 5%,
2%, 23% & 3.0%: prexoited under the WBFC Begulations for Equnty Sub Fumd, Momey Maket Sub Fund znd Dett Sub Fund.

Fothier, m May 2014, the Honotrahie Peshawar High Cowt (PHT) held that the impurned kv of contibiten mireduced in the Ordmance throush Pimnce Acts, 1986 and 2009 lacks the sssential mandate to be infroduced and pazeed throush & Mozey Bill under the
constitution and_ hence the amendments meade through the Fmance Acts were declared 26 Thrs Vires



22. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Ret (loss) (income for the year

Bealized (losses)  gains onsale ofinvesiments

Unreslizad (loss) gain on revelvation of mvesimients clazeified
as financial aszets at fair value throngh profit or loss - set

Dividend incams

Finapcial Tncome

Total contributions received - gross

Netmoome for the vear
Rieslited (los=) ' zain on sale of investments
Unreaﬁ:—ed {fogs} zam on revalitation of mvestments clagzified
as finarcial aszets at fair ralue throuoh profit or loss - net
Financal Tnoome
Total contribntions recaried - zross

Net meome for the vear

Realized (lozses) samnms onzale of myeshments

Unrealized (loss) / zain on revaluation of wnvestments alzzsifiad
az-finanrial assety at fam value through profit orlosz —net

Financial Incoms

Toial contributions recetved - gross

Met mneome for the vear
Bealized (loses)  zsinson sale of mvestments
Loss on derivative contracts
Unrealizad (lozs) / gamm op revalustion of mvestments classified
az-financial assete at faw-valve through profit or loas-net
Finzncial [ncome
Total conmbuhons received - gros

Equity Sub Fund
June 30,2023 | June30, 2022 | % Change June 30,2021 |  June30.2020
{Rupees in "000) {Rupessin "000)
(6.2685) (153 ,075) -BG%s 303,176 89844
(44.788) (66,669) -33% 260,112 39,487
(28:174) (184.878) -85% 169,351 4.771)
112,114 112,158 %e 80,815 51,252
11.297 6,352 it 1971 a0
436,059 341,527 28% 627355 516,136
Pebt 5ub Fund
June 30,2023 |  June 30,2022 % Change June30,2021 |  Junme 30,2020

{(Rupees in "'000)

{Rupees in "000)

145 649 83,078 3% 47,084 102 833

(13.424) {3.856) 170% (3:337) 14358
2813 L5372 (3) 218 12344

173,943 08, 18D Til 66,530 80 733

731,658 32123 32% 373,516 196,748

Monev Market Sub Fund
June 30, 2021 I June 30,2022 s Change Junz 30, 2021 [ Junz 30, 2020
{(Bupeez in "000) {Rupees in "000)

117,005 104,167 205% 58,382 110,977
(2.641) 3:703) -20% (161) 3256
{1938) - . o 623

340 238 25,850 178% 79,734 137446

2.201 323 866:281 165% 476314 G51.123
Commodity Sub-Fund
Jupe 30,2023 |  June30,2022 | 9 Change June 30,2021 | June 20,2020
{Rupees in "000) {Rupees in "000)
347 (1O D47%% Z11) 575
{924 {168) 430% 335 1320
= (1.011) = -
= = z 2 304
2543 63382 B3 506 774
i3 401 341 §H 06% 5,685 32744
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Particulars

June 30, 2023

Equity Sob Fund

Dbt Sabh Fund

Money Market Sub Fund

Commaodities Sub-Fund

At fair value

At fair value

At fair valne

At fair valoe

Aatrtmed throush Total =Sumocliseg thraugh Total Amortized cost through Total Amortiied throazh Total
o3t o3k cost
profit or loss profit or foss profit or loss profit or loss
(Bupees in "000)
Financial asser:
Bank balsnces 50,760 - 3,760 3I5.668 - 328 668 1212361 = 212561 3357 1797126
Investments - gt 683373 GEF.E73 - &30, 816 630816 - 243033 243 333 - .57 212
Hecermable aoamst'zale of myesiment 15,783 13,7383 18,783
Diidend receivable a0 - 06 25 XTS5 25275 = E E 118 262040
Diepoait and cther -
recetvabls EB1L - 3,811 615 - 615 1284618 . 128,618 1001 136,035
T4 250 685373 Ti8.632 554553 650816 1205374 13404978 243033 1384 012 E.416 = 3557464
Jume 30, 2022
Equity Sub Fund Debt Sub Fund Money Market Sub Fund Commadities Sub-Fund
Particulars At fair value At fair value At fair valne At fair value
Amoaortsed Amortized Amertized
::;Et throogh Total :ﬂﬂ through Total Amortised cost through Total :;: ¢ through Total
profit or loss profit or loss profit or loss profit or loss
(Bupees in "000)
Financial asseis
Bank balances G211 = o4 1 983 1B = 933018 1445052 - 1 446 652 13074 38674
Investments - gt L316:190 1.316, 180 - 2117 S INT - . N = -
Becemvable agamat zale of myestment G353 8053
Dividand receivable 333 = 1,333 10.42% = 10428 23273 = 23273 17 137
Deposit snsl other . -
recervahle 14 515 - 14,515 2108 - 2108 6,033 2 6.033 2 803 2.E03
>0 1316180 1.431 204 223553 2117 LOBT 672 1476260 - 1456260 427594 S 427894




June 30, 2023

Equity Sob Fund Diebt Sub Fund Money Market Sub Fund Commopdities Sub-Fund
Particulars 3 At fair value i At fair valne At fair valne i At fair valoe
:‘.m:::sad. through Total Am:‘::ﬂd through Total Amortised cost through Tuotal Am:;.l:sed through Total
profit or loss profit or loss profit or loss profit or loss
{(Bupees in "000)
Financial iabilities
Payable to UBL Food Manager T td
Manager T imitad -
Pepsion Fund Manager gATS - 8475 431 - 4321 11,513 - 11515 Ti Tl
Payable 1o the Central
Depoutory Compary of
Pakustan Dimited - Frostes B t3] - 1ol 110 - 110 275 = 275 1 1
Payable tothe SECP 450 460 400 4n0 728 708 i 7
Pavable against purchase of investmes 2012 2012 161 668 161 668 . - .
Accrued expenzez and = -
other lishilities 15303 - 15,303 5431 = 5431 6431 - 6431 832 B32
30351 - 30 351 171 930 - 171,930 18,017 - 190817 a1l - n11
June 30, 2022
Equity Sub Fund Debt Sub Fund Money Market Sub Fund Commadities Snb-Fund
Partculars ¥ At fair value . At fair value At fair value . At fair value
e throogh Total e through Total Amortised cost through Total e through Total
cost profit or loss cost profit or loss profit or loss cost profit or loss
{(Rupees in "000)
Financial Habilities
Payable to UBL Fund
Manager [ imitad -
Pension Fund Manager 6020 - 6,020 2592 - 2502 3526 - 3.596 128 128
Payzble to the Central
Depoattory Company of
Palneizn Timnted - Trostes 065 = 6475 i3 - 15 130 - 150 4 4
Payabls to'the SECP 501 581 354 354 437 437 g B
Pavable against purchase of investme &.663 6,663 B - -
Accrmed expenzes and
other Habilities 13374 - 15374 8:133 - 9.133 7.36% - 73649 674 1674
29313 = 28513 12,094 = 12084 11 682 - 11.682 1,813 2 1.814
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24.1.1

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT

The Fund's objective 1n managmg risks 1= the creation and protection of participants’ value
Risk 15 mhberent in the Fund's actrvines, but 1t 1= managed through a process of ongoing
dentification measurement and momitoring, subject to risk limits and other contrals The
process of risk management 1s critical to the Fund’s continuing profitabilty.

Monitoring and controlling risks are primarily set up to be performed based on the limits
established by the internal controls set on different activities of the Fund by the Board of
Dhrectors, These controls and limats reflect the business strategy and markst environment of
the Fund aswell as the level of the nsk that the Fund 12 walling to accept. In addinon. the Fund
monitors and measures the overall nsk beaning capacity in relation to the agzresars nisk
exposure across all risks tvpe and acuvites.

The policy of the Fund is to make investments only in designated authonsed investments
approved by the Investment Committes.

The Fund primanly invests in listed equity securities, povernment securities, term finance
certificates; sukuk certificates and deposits with scheduled banks: These activities are exposed
to a variety of financial risks such as: market risks, credut nisk and liquidity nsks.

Market risk

Market risk is the nsk that changes 1n market prices, such as interest rates, squiiy prices,
foreign exchange rates and credit spreads {not relating to changes o the obhigor's | 1ssuer's
credit standmg) wall effect the Fund's income or the fair value of s financial instruments.
Market nsk comprises of three types of nsks: currency nisk, mterest rate nisk and other price
risk.

Currency risk

Cumrency nisk 15 the nisk thar the fair value or future cash flows of a financal mstuments wall
fluctuate because of changes in foreign sxchange rates. The Commodity Sub-Fund 1s exposad
to a foreton currency risk on sales and purchas= of fitur= sold contracts, which are =ntered in
a currency other than Pak Rupees. As at vear end. the financial assets exposed to currency nisk
are as follows:



24.1.2

a)

b)

2023 2022 2023 2022
USD | PKR |

Future Gold Cosntracts (3.185) (4,935) (224.269) (1,010,894)

The follovans sisnificant exchanse raiss applied during the vear:

2023 26032 2023 2022
[ Average rates I Fates at reporting date I
LS Dollar to PER. 21357 18120 29015 20485

At June 30, 2022 if the Pakistan rupee had weskened |/ strengthened by 10% agamst the US
Dollar with all other vaniables held constant, profit of the Sub-Fund for the vear would have
besn lower | higher by Rs. 0.92 mullion (2022: Rs. 0.1 million), mainly as a result of foreign
sxchange losses | gamns on translation of US Dollar denominated in Future Geld Contracts.

Interest rate risk

Intersst rate risk 1s the nisk that the fair valus or fisture cash flows of a2 financial instroment
will fluctuate as g result of changes in market intetest rates.

Sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

As at June 30, 20223, the Fund holds fixed rate instruments that could expose the Fund to fair
walue interest rate risk

In case of 100 basis points mcrease decrease 1 mntersst rates on Juns 30, 2023 with all other
variables hald constant, the net income for the vear and net assets of debt sub-fund would have
been higher / lower by URSE- DSF Rs. 0.89 mullion (2022: Bs. 0.92 mullion) and URSE-
MMSF 1549 million (2022: Rs.nul).

Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

The Fund's wmterest rate nsk arses from the balances in savings accounts, term deposit and
KIBOR based profit bearing Sukuks sxposing each of the Sub-Funds to cash flow interest rats
risk.

For the year, mmcome would have increased | (decreased) by Rs. 03076 nullion, 10.8986
mitllion. 74890 mullion and 0.0534 million (2022 Rs. 0302 million 7. 749 million 12.017
million and 0.3997 million ) of Equity sub-fund, Debt sub-fund. Money Market sub-fund and
Commodity sub-fund respectively. had the intersst rates on savings accounts with banks
increased | (decreased) by 100 basis points.



24.1.3 Other price nsk

Prices nisk 15 the nisk that the fair vslue or fiture caszh flows of 3 fnancial instroment will
fluctuate because of changes 1ir market prices (other than those ansing from interest rate nck
of curréncy nsk) whether those chanses ate caused by factors specific to the indivdual
financial mstnument or 1s 1ssuer, or factors affecting all simlar financial mstruments traded 1n
the market.

The Fund manages this risk by miting 113 investment

- 3% of NAV or paid-up capital of the investes company, whichever 1s lower
: higher of 30% of NAV or index weight of a single stock exchange sector, subject

to & maxsmum ot of 35% of NAV,

A summary analys:s of local investments by industry sector. the percentage in relation to
Fund's assets and the 1ssued capital of the mvestes company is presented in note 6.1 to these
financial statements. Fusther, the Fund’s policy requires that the overall Fund pesmion is
monitorad on a daily basis by the Fund Manaser and 15 reviewed on bi-monthly basis by the
Investment Commttee and by the Board of Directors 1n every meeting of the Board. Non -
compliance with the Fund's tnvestment policies 15 reported to the Board of Directors.

The Fund's mvestments in equoity securinies are publicly traded and are valusd at the rates
guoted on the relevant stock sxchangss.

In case of 3% increase | decrease m the fair value of the Fund's equity secunties at far value
through profit or loss on June 30, 2023, net mncome for the vear would increase | decrease by
RBs. 34 mullon (2022:Bs. 7037 million) dnd net assetd of the Fund would mcreass | decreaze
by the same amount as a result of gawns |/ losses on equity securities at fawr value through profit
or loss.

The analysis 15 based on the assumption thar the equsiy index had nereasad | decreasad by 3%
with all other variables held constant and ail the Fund's equity insouments moved according o
the histonical correlation wath the mdex. This represents management's best estimate of a
reasonabls possible shift in the PSX 100 Index havine regard to the historical veolanlity of the
mdex. The compositien of the Fund's myestmem portfolio and the correlation thereof to the
EMI index, 15 expected to change over the tme. Accordingly, the senstvity analvsis prepared
as of June 30, 2023 = not necessanly mdicative of the effect on the Fund's net assets of future
movements n the level of PSX 100 Index.
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24.2.1

Credit risk

Cradit sk represents the risk of loss 1f the counter parties fa1l to perform as contracted. Cradit
risk anses from deposits with banks and financial institutions, credit exposure ansing as a
result of dividends recervable on equity securihies, recsivable acamst sale of investments ‘and
mvestment 1 debt secunties. For banks and financial mstitutions balances are kept wath
reputed parties. Credit risk on dividend recervable 18 minimal due to statutory protechion. All
tranzactions n listed securnities are seftied | paid for upon delivery using the national clearmg
company svstem  The risk of default is considered minimal due to inherent svstematic
measures taken therein Risk attnibutable to myestiment 15 limited as thess are 1ssued by the
Federal Government.

Credit risk 15 managed and controiled by the Pension Fund Manager of the Fund mn the

following manner:

- The Fund limis s exposure to credit nisk by only invésting m hguid debt
securinies that have at mimimum an investment grade as rated by a credit rating
agency approved by the SECP. In the absence of 13sue rating. the Fund ensures that
the sntitv has an investment grade as ratzd by a2 credit rating agency approved by
the SECP.

- The nsk of counter party exposure due to failed trades causing a loss to the Fund 15
mitigated by a2 periodic review of trade reports. cradst rattngs and financial
statements on a regular basis. '

Concentration of Credit risk

Concentration of nsk anses when 3 number of finantial mstmments or contracts are entered
into the same counterparty, or where a number of counterparties are engaged i1n similar
business activities, or actrvities in the same geographic region. of have similar economic
features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations 1o be similarly affected
by changes in etonomic, political or other conditions.

Credit gquality of investment in bank balances

The credit quality of balances with banks that are netther past due nor mmpaired can be
assessed by reference 1o the external credit ratings or to the histoncal mformation sbout
counterparty default rates:

Equity Sub Fund Diebe Sub Fund Aoney Market Sub Fond Commodicy Sob Fand |
Rating 13 of inancial szets sxposed Uy of inancial a=:ets L of fimsncial xxzets expozed fo. | 98 of nancis] auseis eposed |
to gredif rizk expatad to greditrisk erzdif rink toaredit ritk i
June 302023 | June 302022 Jonse 30 3023 | Juns 302022  Jone 302023 June 20 2027 |June 30,2023 | Junms 3029032
AAA 333 L3 221 S0 5463 =] = =g
Al 438 EAn Xz X3 b.i je | 23 i
A4 s % | 13 1 3.6 1] HER) L=
S - - 11 61 b.i - B3 -
A £:1 - 1 1 ol el 3.0 o.i
) 160 160 100 100 100 100 T 100




Credit Ratings Balances

AAA Allied Bank Limted 485524
Ad- Bank Alfalah Limsted 614,137.399
AAA United Bank Timited 197.815.113
Al JS Bank Limsted 12,139
AAA MCB Bank Limatad 12949172
AA Samba Bank Limited 6.541.879
Telenor Microfinance Bank Limited (formerly
A Tameer Microfinance 14079
Bank Limited) -
AAS Hahib Bank Limned 304327
A~ Sindh Bank Limited 36.330
AAA National Bank of Pakistan 1376440
AAA Zarar Taragian Bank Limmed 10638
AA- Sonen Bank I imited 256,880.891
Ad- Habib Metro Bank Limted 20,000
A+ First Microfimance Bank Limisted 232328430
Ad- The Bank of Punjab 8444 739

The maximum exposurs to credit nisk before any credit enhancement 1s the carrying amount of
the financidl assets

There are no financial assets that are past due or imparred.
Liquidity risk

Ligudity risk 15 the nsk that the Fund will encounter difficulty m mesting obliganons and
commitments associated with financial mstruments. The Pension Fund Manager manages
Ligudity nsk by continuously analvsing the marunities of 11s financial liabilities.

The Fund's policy 1s to manage this nisk by investing majority of its assets m investments that
are traded m an actrive market and can be readily disposed of

The Fund can borrow, with prior approval of the trustee, for meeting redemption requests. The
maximum amocurit avalable to the Fund from borrowings 1z imuted to the extent of 15% of
total assets at the iime of borrowing with repayment in 90 days of such borrowings. No such
borrowings were made dunng the vear.



24.1.3  FEairvalne interest rate rizk

On-balance sheet
financinl instruments

Financial assers
Eank balances
Investments
Recoivable agamat sale of investments
Diividend aod mark-up recermablz

Dreposits and other tecemvahles

Financial Habilities
Payable to the Pension Fund Menazer
‘Payable to the Trustee
Payvable zzamst purchase of invesiments
Accrued gnd other habilmes

On-balanes shaet gap

Dff-balance shest financial nstroments
Dff-halance sheatoap

Om-balance shest
financial instruments

Financial assets
Bank balances

Term d=postis receipts

Imvestments

Becervable agamst zale of investments
Dividend and markup tsceriable

Depasits and other recerables

Financial Babilities
Payable to the Pension Fund Manacer
Payable to the Trustee
Pavable agamst purchase of myesiments
Aceriad and sther Habilittes.

On-Falanes sheet zap
Off-balence sheet financal matroments
Off-batsncezhestgap

Equity Sub-Fund

Debt Sub-Fund

Money Market Sub-Fund

Commaodity Sub-Fund

Expozed to vield /interest rate rizk

Exposed to yield / interest rate rick

Expated to vield [ interest rate rizk

Exposed tovield / interest rate rick

ive vi Not d
:Ei..’:&me yiekd Total T Not exposed (o Aosethin Mike Not exposed to Nve M il Not exposed to More than :ﬂ::;{:f
CAMETRELEARE Up to three S More than | yield /interest | Upto three |~ AMorethan | vield / imterest Cp to three ; More than vield /interest | Up to three | threemonths | Afore than .
maonths and up o : months and np to . ; maonths and ap : : interest rate
maonths ouE year rate risk months ONE YEar rate risk months ONE YEar rate risk months and up teone | one year i
oNe Year - OnE year : o OnE yvear : risk
Year
e {Rupees in "000)
1350 -22.465 1333673 50,760 - - - 328.661 - - T 743,201 - - i 5337 - - -
18532197 3314883 - - - 683375 82613 218.091 423880 - 1973846 - 423980 - - - - -
1B, 783 - - - 18,783 - - - - - - : - : : -
44 393 = = - 206 - - - 25275 - - = 17,794 - - - 118
13572 - - - 3311 - - - 613 - - - 8153 - - - 2001
5,237,003 30,760 - - 708,873 618374 218021 423,080 25,897 2T TAT - 473 980 23.056 3337 - - 3100
24379 - - - 5475 - - - 4321 - - - 11,513 - - - 71
87 = & - 101 - z - 1o - = z 275 - - - 1
163 680 = = s 2.8]2 - - - 161 688 - - - - - - - -
6,053 - - - 44613 - - - 41F3 - - - 573 - - - 466
124801 - - - 15201 - - Laa 502 - - - 12,541 - - - 338
5032402 50,760 - - 693672 618274 118,021 423,880 (140,605) ET2ETET - 423 280 135095 5337 : : 2371
2022
Equity Sub-Fund Debt Sub-Frund Meney Market Sub-Fund Cemmodity Sub-Fond
Exposad to vield | intefest fate risk Exposed to vield | mteresirafe risk Expoted to vield | interest rate risk Exposed to visld/ profit rate risk
Total Notexposad to Not zed 1o Mot expozed t= ot exposad
- More than three el ey ; Mege then three Bl oo e y More than fhres s as y More than fiwee =
Up i thse S Aore than yiald / nterest Upio three e Morethan |veld . snterest mte Up 1o three " - More than yield / mterest | Upto three 52 More than o yield
monthy e ofie Year ate risk maonths mORRaIng.0 10 Qe VEAS risk minthe menE e e 8 one Year rate sk months = - P one yerr |profisate msk
yeas OHE FEar OOE Vear fz one year
Rupeez mn 000
£51550 1560153 o0 21 = B = 083,01 3 B i 1A45, 713 - 3 257 39874 . . .
£.75-13.76 LAGE 367 - - - 13161949 L7847 74270 - - = = - - - - - -
8033 - - - 8,935 - - - - - - - - - -
33,052 = & H 1,333 - 5 = 10429 - - - 23273 = z z 17
25461 = - - 14513 - - - 2108 - - - g:.033 - - - 2303
4,037,930 g0 211 - - 1,346,003 1 000 23538 2T - 12,542 1446 713 - - 22533 39.974 - - < 10
12286 - - - 6,02 - - 25092 - - - 3526 - : : 123
B34 - - - G6ES s = . 13 = = = 150 - - - 4
6663 - - - 6.663 - - - - - - - - - - -
§426 3 i z 6,345 z 3 1,148 z - = 320 z : : 313
28,189 - - - 19,695 - = - 3,753 - = = 4,196 - - - 5435
4.009 741 o021 - - 1321500 1,000 858 74270 - g.782 1446 715 - - I5 340 3eo7d = = 2275




Thet=hls below snshees the Tund = finsraal lmbilive: mee relerant meturey sroapmes hered on the Term=mms panod = e reporimes date toiNe conmactos] meturmy d=te. Lhe 2ncunts mths his e the contraczl tmdisccamted cash floes

June 3, 2023
Equiry 5ab Fund Dizbt Sub Fond Monpesy Markst Sob Fund Commodity Sab-Fumd
Loy Upio i Over Upio et Chzr Upto &;M Oher Upto Orear |lr:rul Orear Tatal
thres and ww o ons Tatal thrss and-un ¢ ouE Tozal thres and um-to ooE Total three andsa e ohe Total
roonths o VEEr maonths shind TEar momihs i VEAT momihs - vear
onE YEAr IR TEAT ans FEar one yzar
(Ruopess in "0H)
Fi ial Lisbiliti
Payzble to UEL Sezet Mismassment
Eimmted - Permion Tund Mensser BAZS - $475 331 - - 433 11351% - - 11513 7l T W37
Pavable ta the Cettral Dencattory - =
Company of Palnstae Tornt=d - - -
Trustas 18 - 101 110 - - 11a r i - - I 1 457
Arcrosd empenzes and offisr lisheiite 13303 - 19303 3431 . = 431 £.43 - E451 832 532 31,957
27370 - - ITEFE 5 BA1 - - 857 18 218 - - 18.31G i - S04 35863
===V v s Ge———————————— ¥ | e e A s T el o P e S, B S—————— e Tt = A=)
Tune 30, 2032
Equity Sub Fond Dbt Sob Fand Money Markst Sub Fund Commodity Sub-Fond
Barticular Upto : Orver Cotw i i Oher pto b Orver Tpto Qe Crer Tekal
thres PR, onz Toial thres e one Taoml thres ki ane Total thres sl it anz Taial
months - Tpar menths T Tear months = vEar maonths = vERr
oae YEIET O3E VEAT e TRAr anE year
(Bupes= in'00{)
Finansial Liahilitie:
Baiablzto UBL Fund Memsesr
Linuited - Pentron Fund ismsse &.01) = $.020 2997 = £ T 069 3536 1 = L§76 125 16063
Farablz to the Central Diepostory - -
Company of Paltn Tiwiriad - =] z
Trustze 585 s Ba5 13 = £ &5 . 3 : L1s ETD
Arrroed sxperiec-and other hahilifes 53T z 13374 2133 = E S4IE e 5 z = 1538 1574 35,32
32030 . - I 039 11740 = L1738 11035 - - 13620 L.EOS = z 47435
e e — 1§ . § ________________§ ____________ _
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UNIT HOLDERS' FUNDS MANAGEMENT

The participants’ fund 1s representad by redeemable umits. These units are entitied to payment
of a proportionate share. based on the Fund's net asset value per unit on the redemption date.

The Fund kas no restnctions on the subscniption and redemption of units. There 15 no speeific
capital requirement which 1s applicable to the Fund

The Fund's objectives when managing participants’ fands are to safeguard 1ts ability to
confinue as & going concern so that if can continue to provide retums to participants and to
mamtain a strong base of assets under management.

In accordance with the nsk manazement policiss stated in note 23, the Fund sndeavors to
imnvest the subscnpnons recerved in appropnate mvestments while mamiamme sufficiemt
liquidity to meet redemption. Since the participants of the Fund have invested with long term
objective, the possibility of a sipmificant redemption pressure 1s limited, such hguidity s
ausmented by borrowing amrangements (which can be entered if necessary) or disposal of
investments, where necessary.

All units, mecluding the core units, and fractions thereof represents an undivided share m the
pertinent sub-funds of the Fund and rank pan passu as their rights in the n=t assets and eaming
of the sub-fund are not tradable or transferable. Each participant has a beneficial interest in the
sub-fund proportionats to the units held by such participant i such sub-fund.

The Fund classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the mputs used i making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the

following levels:

- Fair value measurements using quotéd prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
rdentical assets or habiltties (lavel 1)

- Fair value measurements using mputs other than quoted pnces included within level 1
that are-observable for the asset or liabihity, either directly (1.e: as prices) or mndirectly
{i.e. derived from prices) (level 2). and

- Fair value measurements wsing Inputs for assets or liabilities that are not based on
observable market data (1= unobs=rvable inputs) (level 3).

The table below analvse financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting year by the
level in the fair value uerarchy into which the fair value measurement 15 categonsad:
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FAIR VALUE OF FINANCTAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction betwsen market participants at the measurement date. Consequentiy.
differences can ansa betwesn careving values and the farr value estimates.

Underlymmg the defimtion of fawr value 1s the presumption that the Fund 1s-a going concem
without any intenfion or requirement {o curtail materially the scale of s operanions or to
undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

A financial instrument 15 regarded as quoted 1o an active markst if quoted prices are readily
and regularly available from an exchange dealer, broker, industry group, pricing servics, or
regulatory agency, and those pnices represent actual and regularly occumng market
transactions on an arm' s length basis.

Intemational Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 13, "Fair Value Measurement” requires the
Fund te classify fawr value measurements usmg 2 farr value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the mputs used i making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the

following levels:

z Quoted prices (unadjusted) 1n active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1),

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset
of liability, either directly (that 1s, as prices) or indirectly (that s, derved from prices)
(level 2) '

= Inputs for the asset or hability that are not based on chservable market data (that 15,
unobservable mputs) (level 3).

The table below analvse financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting vear by the
level in the fair valus hierarchy into which the fair valus measurement 1s categons=d:

2023
Fair valus
Level 1 Tevel 2 Leve] 2 Tatal

Divestments st fair value threoeh profitor lozs e {Kupees in '000)
Eguity Sub-Furd

Listed sgmivseoirities §83373 - - BES373
Debt Sub-Fund

Government secirmes - Farian Imesmment Bonds - 432,715 - A3 TES

Government securtes - harket Treasurr Bills E9EI1Z 23514

Diabt zacurmies - Term Dinanes Cartifirates | Submlbs - 128473 - 128478

Czovermmant zecmrities - Pakrstan Invesmmart Bonds - 213,580 B 423 BED

Crovernment securities — Wark=t Treasory Bill= - 155268 - 1S4 ERE

Commodite Snb-Fomd

Debt Sub-Fund

Czovermmant zecmrities - Pakrstan Invesmmart Bonds

f85 273 1614 552 - 3310035
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2022
Fair valus
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Invesmments af fair valos through profit or loss o (Ropees in '}0)

Equity Sub-Fund
Lizted aquity sactorhza 13516190 - - 1336150

Dekt Sub-Fund
Goermment sequrties - Paiostan Investmsit Bowdy - -
Dbt secmatied - Term Fnance Cerfificates | Sidads - L= 30 B ) - 42117
Imzstments at farwmlus throish other commprehensive inbome - - - -
Dbt Bub-Fond - - -

Gorermmant tecirrted - Peigatan Imertmant Bonds - - = :
1316180 = = 1 448307

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH CONNECTED PERSONS / RELATED PAR

Connected persons | related parties comprise of United Bank Limited (holding Company of
Pensson Fund Manacer), UBL Fund Managers [amited (Pension Fund Manager), Al - Ameen
Financial Services (Private] Limited (subsidiary of pension fund managers), collective
meestment schemes managed by the Pension Fund Manager; directors and officers of the
Pension Fund Manager, entiti=ss under common manasément or directorships. and Central
Depository Company of Pakistan Limated (Trustes).

Remuneration of the Pension Fund Manaser and trustes 15 determined in accordance with the
provisions of VPS Rules, and the Trust Deed.

Other transactions with the related parties | connected persons are carned out at agreed
commercial terms.

Details of transachons with related parties | connected persons during the and balances held
with them at the vear ended June 30. 2023 are as follows:



Farticular:

Peomion
Fund

Anposted
companies
and ethers™

Truztes

Fonds umdar

ECEImIOR
INAORTEMEnT

Director: and
key Executives™

Other connecied

Esuaty Sub-Tind

Tramszrhons dorns the wer
Slark-uip o banke ascounds
Bk charss:

= rszmad fumrts m 000)
Unmrte'rad smad {unste in '000)
Vakie of vnst ps=sed

Value of onit red=amad
Femunsrston™

Sallms and marketms expan:s
Pupeizes of sarmrtess

Zals of secorities

Ceptrel Beposstory Sermce (CD3)

xpanzs

{Fapees im 091

For the vear ended June 30, 1023

- 452 -

i
faw
&

23
3037
L3O

Parucolars

Femzion
Tund

Aszarinted
COMPRIES
and othsrs™

Trastes

Fuonds ander

COEmOon
manasEmant

Divectors and
kav Executives™™

Other conxected
perzon:

Mark-op on bank accoorh
Bk charss:

= rszmad fumrts m 000)
Unmrte'rad smad {unste in '000)
Valize of Units fuxnad

Value of Unrz redesmed
Femunsranon®

Sallms and marketms expan:s
Pupeizes of sarmrtess

Zala of saruribies

Central Deposstory Sarnca {(COE)

expenzas

{Rupee: in "000)

Far the year snded June 3. 2021

- 133% -

£52 - 011

-
b
Y]




Epsty Sab-Fond
Ezlances held

Clrsts held (ot i T00)

Utz held Rupsss i 00
[myzsiments

Bl balances

Sallin= & \Marketine Faporss Prable
Eemuneraron payabis®

Sal=a foad pavakls

Alleested snpenzac pavabls

Slarksip recemanls

Hber pavehle

Babmeesheld

Emts held

Utz Held Romess in ‘000
Inestrionty

Bl balances
Eempneston payabie®
Bale=lopd parabl=
Allcrsted swpemss pavabls
Marap recershbls

Othes pavahnls

(Rapss: in '000)

Az at Jupe M, 2023

{Fapees im 091

Az st Junz 3, 2022

118174
7041

113164

eIk

&

t W
e )
Lh
i
Fad

Miamager

Azsociated
£ODIpAmIE:

and others=

Trustes

Fonds ooder
eommni
mangTament

Directars and
key Execntives*™|

Oithar connected

pertom

Dbt Sub Fund

Transzarton: durms he vaar

hlark-oo onbank acooonts
Bank charz=s

LUinirts teemsed (s s (1)
Uiz radesmad (onssm 00
Valse of it manad

Walue of unit redsamed
Purckzse of sarurtiss

Zals of cacurities
Eemunsston®

CDE ==panaes

{Fupees in "000)

For the vesr ended June 30, 2023

3079

4957

1340

i
o

153

160




Fer the vesr ended June 2. 1021

{Fupees m "080)
hlarkor on bank accoonts - LITF = = - -
Bamlccharges - il - . . .
Ulneite examesd frverds g '0040) - - + &7 ..
Utz red=emad [onits m 'B0) - - = i5 .
Valse of it manad 1B Gas
Valse of unw red=smed 0330
Punckzse of szrurbias = 242 300 - . .
Bala of cacurties - 0 = = -
Eemmineration® 525 Im % 5 2
Sallms and sisrkatms Expanse L1173
COE sxperses = L . : .

Az at Jups 30, 1023
Dizbt Sub-Fund (Bauspees in "000)
Balances held
Ltz held B - " . .
Utz held Rupeesn TG = - = = =
Bk bolines - 26576 = : : =
Fallms & Marketms Bxpenze Povzhle 2401 - - . -
Femunsanon parane” 418 oo . . .
Balas laad payakls BiE - - + .
Alloesfed sypepz= prvabls £72 - . N R
b= payabls 14 5 = - z o
hadear reeenahle - elal. B = - -
Particular: P;Eﬂ fl:::l::j Truxies f“;‘::;f“ Di:rm:lm.l.mi. - ey iz rted
Afannzer anid atbrst S kzyv Exerpives®™ persom:
As at-Juns 30, 2022

{Fuopees im 000}
Clrsts held (ot i T00) - - - 0 =
Uitz held Rupses in U000 - - - & =
Bzl palances . 12 18
Flemmestion pavahiz® HeE 1% = i =
Ealas koad parabla S5 = = T 2
Cther zayable 4 : - : =

- 50 - . . .

Sizre-up recamainle




{Rupees in "000)

For the year snded June 30, 1023
Moner Wiarkcet Sub-Fund
Tramsachons curns the vear
Niark-up-on bank sceommds - 2174 - - § =
Bamle charsae - 43 3 = — .
Unst= szsuad funtts m 000} - - - 14 -
Utz redeerned (mutsm GHI0) - = - g -
Valoe of omit m=ued = - - 34553 -
Vahes of unit redzomad - - - e | =
Pupeizes of sarmrtess - = s T =
Zals of cacurities - - - - -
Remmnersticn [1465 2400 : . .
Sallms and marketing smpanss 2335 = x 5 »
(Fupee: in "H00)
For the vear ended June 3. 1021
Maricap on hank accotmt - i1s0 - = % =
Bank charz=s - 35 = = I :
DUtz meued (umite m "0 - - - 125 =
Emtz redeemad fomtem DT = = - It -
Vahes of vnit Esued Fi ¥ EAL
Vakiz of unit redzamad 1473
Purebaes of sacurstyes - BIREDT - = z -
Bala of camartre= - 145457 - - - -
Remminerstion® 15712 147 . " .
Sallng and mark=tinz expenze 1308
Particalars P‘:'En J:.T;T;*: Trmares fu;i::iﬂ Tieecursans || 9ther conmeciag
{Raopee: in "000)
Az st Juns 30, 2023

Ao M= Sub-Fomd
Emutz held - - - -
Ulnite' Held Rupzas in 000 & - = 60,264 -
Bk palances - 147,625 - - + .
Rallmz & Y faristin: Frpamsz Sovsble. 2,0 0F
Remuneation payabie® 1081 - B3 - & +
Bales toad pavable LEH - - - -
Allpested sxpensas pmzhls 1058
OHh= peable 14 . = = i =

- 1,057 = = — .

hlark-op reoeniahble




Unat= hald

Emtz hedd Fapaes m 00
Bankbelanras
Remnestion prrahle®
{(Hhes pavzhle

Nark-up racerzhls

Commpdity Sob-Tond
Tramszrhons dorns the wer
Slark-uip o banke ascounds
Bk charss:

= rszmad fumrts m 000)

Unmrte'rad smad {unste in '000)

Valis of vnst psmaad
Valee of nmt redeamad
Eempneraton®

{Fupees in "000)

Az at June 30, 2022

1,320

£33

£5.161

(Rapss: in '000)

1

3,840

For the vear anded June 2. 1023

Fartictilars

Peasion
Fund

Alznnper

Azvaciated
COMIpAMIES
and ethers™

Directorz and
kzy Exarpimraz®

hlark-oo onbank acooonts
Utz remed fromts pe '000)

Cherts radesmad [tz m 0

Valee of 1yt mmiad
Walse of unit redeamed
Eempnaston®

Commpdity Sob-Tond
Bzlmces held

[t held

Utz held Rupsss i T00
Bzl palances
Bemnestion pavahiz®
Eales bvad parable
hlark-op reoeniahble
Hber pavehle

{Fupee: in "000)

For the vesr ended June 30, 1021

(Rapss: in '000)

As atJups 3, 1022

958

il
Lad

Oiher connectzd




{Fupees in "000)
Az ai fume 30, 2022

Dt hiald fomits o 000 - : = Z z 165
Uitz held Bupsss m 030 -
B belameas - 1141 - . )
Remnestion prrahle® 0 . 4 . - .
Narkar rzeerahle 2 7 £ = < -

i

Othes pavahnls £ T T = z =

* This represents parent (including the related subsidiaries of the parent) of the Pension Fund
Managers, associated compames | undertakines of the Pension Fund Managers_ 1ts parents and
the related subsidianes.

These mclude transactions and balances i relation to the satties where commen
directorship exists as at year end. Howsver, it does not include the transactions and balances
wherebv the common director resigned from the Beard of the Pansion Fund Managers duning
the year,

GENERAL
Figures have been rounded off to the nearést thousand rupess. where stated othenwise

Corresponding figures have been reamranged and reclassifisd. wherever necessary for the
purposs of companzon.

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE
These financial statements wers authonssd for 1ssue by the Board of Directors of the Pension

Fond Manager on August (3, 2023

For UBL Fund Managers Limited
{Pension Fund Manager)

L) SO 50

¥asir Cradry Umalr Ahmed Imran Sarwar
Chigf £xecutive: Dfficar Chist-Fingaciail (Hiicsr Director



1. Summary of Actual Proxy Voted By the Fund

UASF
Reszolutions For Against Abstaln”
Number 111 g - 102
Percentage 100.6% 8.1% N/A 81.8%

“Abstained as nothing material from our perspective,

The proxy voting policy of the Fund is available on the website o UBL Fund Managers Limited
(Maragemenl Company) and detailed Information tegarding actual proxies vioted by the Management
Company In respect of the Fund is also available without charge, upon request, to all unit holders.




